
 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

03/04/2025 10:00 AM  
 

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 
 

AGENDA 
 

This meeting will be held in person and the public is welcome to attend. 
 
Members of the public who wish to watch the meeting remotely may do so by accessing the Storey 
County Clerk’s new YouTube channel. To access the Channel and the Live Stream: 

1. Open your browser and go to www.youtube.com/@storeycountyclerk 
2. Click on the Storey County seal   when it has the LIVE display,  

or click on the video picture for the meeting in the playlist under the county seal 
with the LIVE display on the graphic. 

 - Public comment may be made by in-person appearance only. -  

 
For additional information or supporting documents please contact the  

Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969. 
                                      

JAY CARMONA 
CHAIRMAN 
 
CLAY MITCHELL 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
DONALD GILMAN 
COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

JIM HINDLE 
CLERK-TREASURER 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Health Board, Storey County Brothel 
License Board, Storey County Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board and 
the Storey County Liquor and Licensing Board and during this meeting may convene as any of 
those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda. All matters listed under the 
consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or 
any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon 
separately during this meeting.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be 
taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time.  The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time allotted for each 
individual to speak.  Public comment is limited to three minutes per individual. 
 

http://www.youtube.com/@storeycountyclerk


All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless 
marked otherwise. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M. 

 
2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of 

each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar 
agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments 
should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per 
individual. 
 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the March 4, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 

A. ABSCO Fire Protection LLC – Contractor / 9025 Spanish Trail ~  
            Sparks, NV 
B. All Crane Service LLC – Out of County / 1000 Marietta Way ~  
            Sparks, NV 
C. Crusoe Energy Systems, LLC – Out of County / 255 Fillmore St. Ste. 400  
            ~ Denver, CO 
D. DeHart Recycling Equipment Inc. – Out of County /  
            11862 Missouri Bottom Rd. ~ Hazelwood, MO 
E. Guzman & Sons Drywall LLC – Contractor / 5385 Jon. Dr. ~ 
            Sun Valley, NV 
F. Harrison Nevcon LLC – Contractor / 503 Sam Clemens ~ Dayton, NV 
G. Kinetic Cutting Systems Inc. – Out of County / 10960 Zaiser Rd. ~  
            West Burlington, IA 
H. ORR Protections Systems, Inc. – Contractor / 6761 Sierra Ct. Ste A  
            ~Dublin, CA 
I. Paul Davis Restoration of Reno & Lake Tahoe – Contractor / 
            650 Innovation Dr. Ste. A ~ Reno, NV 
J. Sierra Design Concrete – Contractor / 130 Circuit Ct. ~ Sparks, NV 
K. The Shrinkwrap Co., LLC – Out of County / 2400 Sharon Way ~  
            Reno, NV 



L. WEIMA America Inc. – Out of County / 3678 Centre Cir. ~ Fort Mill, SC 
M.        X Burger – Food Truck / 984 Leah Cir ~ Reno, NV  

 
II Approval of claims in the amount of $4,916,959.73.  

 
III Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel Policy 1001 

Disciplinary Actions and Appeals.  
 
8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports 

 
9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) 

 
10. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD 

 
11. 10:30 A.M. PUBLIC HEARING: 

  
Public Hearing on proposed Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761 
and 25-762 as described:  
  RESOLUTION 25-757 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910100, 
UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 
405.191.  It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
  RESOLUTION 25-758 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910320, 
CEMETERY RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 
405.191.  It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
  RESOLUTION 25-759 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910325, 
UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 
405.191.  It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
  RESOLUTION 25-760 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910470, 
UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 
405.191.  It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
  RESOLUTION 25-761 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS    COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 911345, 
UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED   STATUTES 403.170 and 
405.191.  It is proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
  RESOLUTION 25-762 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY 
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 920020, HILLSIDE 
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road. 
 
 
The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a 
public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It 
must be used by the public at its own risk. 
 



Please go to the Storey County website to view the packet.  
Storeycounty.org/Planning/Planning Updates then Scroll down to RS2477 
packet information for this item.  

 
12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-757 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as 
Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 
13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-758 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as 
Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet.  It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 
14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-759 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as 
Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet.  It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 
15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-760 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as 
Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, it is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 



16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-761 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as 
Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet.  It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 
17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-762 proposing the 
identification of Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as 
Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet.  It is 
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of 
identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, 
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used 
by motorists at their own risk.  

 
18. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout 
Storey County.  

 
19. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Special Use Permit 2025-014.  The 
applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment.  
The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include a 
variety of scheduled uses and special events. The property is located at 100 N. E 
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-
154-03 and 001-151-02.  

 
21. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Presentation and discussion featuring Storey County Public Relations & Social 
Media Metrics Update (August 2024 – January 2025).  

 
22. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval directing the Comptroller to notify the 
Nevada Department of Taxation of the property tax rate the Storey County 
Board of Commissioners propose to levy for fiscal year 2025-2026.  



 
23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Storey County's Plan of Corrective 
Action in response to the Department of Taxation’s review of Fiscal Year 2024 
annual audit report and identified violations pursuant to NRS 354.6245.  

 
24. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD 
 
25. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to increase previously approved funding 
from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were 
outlined in the district CIP, to an estimated amount of $340,000, an increase of 
$40,000.  

 
26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to send $176,929.54 of outstanding unpaid 
ambulance bills to collections & write off the amount of $2,101.98.  

 
27. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 25-765 of the Board of 
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, reaffirming the board’s request to 
the Nevada Delegation to advance federal public lands legislation commonly 
referred to as the Truckee Meadows Public Lands Management Act to support 
conservation, recreation, and economic development in Washoe County.  

 
29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists 
regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but 
not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement 
programming, Senate bill(s) regarding regional planning Storey, Washoe, Lyon, 
Carson, Douglas, and cities, Daly; SB78 as potentially related to the Comstock 
Historic District Commission; AB77 tax abatement; AB32 V&T Railway, AB128 
public records request ombudsman including open cases; AB242 sagebrush 
ecosystem and fire fuels reduction; SB232 Veterans Storey County; SB247 rail 
transit; AB247 real-time sign language translation and disabilities; AB61 Washoe 
County toll roads; all bills supported by the Nevada Association of Counties 
(NACO) unless otherwise directed by the board, and AGA2240 Daylight 
Savings Time.  

 
 



 
30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings: 
A. American Document Destruction – Out of County / 480 Coney Island Dr.  
            ~ Sparks, NV 
B. Amfabsteel Inc. – Contractor / 100 Calle Industrial ~ Bernalillo, NM 
C. Baobab Press – Home Based / 96 A St. ~ Virginia City, NV 
D. Beyond Estate Sales LLC – Out of County / 1965 Woodhaven Ln ~ 
            Sparks, NV 
E. California Erectors Inc. – Contractor / 4500 California Ct. ~ Benecia, CA 
F. Comstock Construction Services Inc. – Out of County / 115 Territory Rd.  
            ~ Dayton, NV 
G. Danny Couste Construction LLC – Contractor / 94 Paul Way ~  
            Carson City, NV 
H. Fire Suppression Technology’s Inc. – Contractor / 216 F St. ~  
            Waterford, CA 
I. KD Electric – Contractor / 681 Watson Way ~ Sparks, NV 
J. MJB Construction Co. – Contractor / 5795 Tappan Dr. ~ Reno, NV 
K. Reid Services LLC – Out of County / 425 College St. ~ Rockmart, GA 
L. Schindler Elevator Corporation – Contractor / 20 Whippany Rd. ~  
            Morristown, NJ 
M. Schumway’s Mobile Home Setters – Out of County / 5309 Torobie Cir. ~ 
            Sun Valley, NV 
N.         XP Electric LLC – Contractor / 2266 Hayfield Ln. ~ Fernley, NV  

 
31. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of 

each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar 
agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments 
should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per 
individual. 
 

32. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: 

• Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings. 
• Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding 

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969. 
• Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear. 
• Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end of each meeting. These comments 

should be limited to matters not already on today’s calendar agenda. Public comment is again 
welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those comments should be limited to the 
agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per individual. 

• Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, 
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin. 

• In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from 



discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, 
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for 
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all 
bases apply to all programs).  Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or 
incident. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or 
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English.  
To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a 
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 
(1) mail:  U.S. Department of Agriculture  
                 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

           1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
           Washington, D.C. 20250-9410.  
 

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  
 
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 
 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special 
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in 
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
I, Drema Smith,  Administrative Assistant to Storey County, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused 
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 2/27/2025;  Storey County 
Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N 
C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, 
VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.  
This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https://notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey 
County website at: https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter  
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
    Drema Smith 
    Administrative Assistant II           

 
 

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the March 4, 2025, meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2025,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk & Treasurer     Contact Number: 7758470969

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

         6



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

2/4/2025 10:00 AM 
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

_________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL DONALD GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN  COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER JIM HINDLE 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK & TREASURER

_____________________________________________________________ 
Roll Call 

• Commissioners Carmona, Gilman, and Mitchel Present – quorum established

Total Attendance: 25 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commissioner Jay Carmona called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Lee Sterrett, member of the Carson Water
Subconservancy District for Storey County, gave an update on his recent attendance at a
conference, including issues of water law, water management and groundwater rights
retirement.

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
agenda for the February 4, 2025, meeting.

Public Comment: None



Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s agenda as presented. Seconded 
by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the 

minutes from the January 7, 2025, meeting.  
 

Public Comment: None 
 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the minutes from our Jan 7, 2025, 
meeting as presented. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:  

I. For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 
A. Cosco Fire Protection Inc. – Contractor / 3620 West Reno Ave, #K ~ Las Vegas, NV  
B. Empire Southwest LLC– Out of County / 3300 St Rose Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV  
C. Inside Out Construction LLC – Contractor / 1940 Currant Ct. ~ Gardnerville, NV  
D. M.A. Mortenson Company – Contractor / 700 Meadow Ln. North ~ Minneapolis, MN  
E. Reed’s Garage – General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV  
F. Staffing Technical Services Inc. – Out of County / 528 W. Roosevelt Rd. Ste. 101 ~ Wheaton, IL 

 
II. Approval of claims in the amount of $6,231,231.49.  

 
Public Comment: None 

 
Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s Consent agenda as presented. 
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports  
 

Fire District 
• Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar said that on Jan. 31 he attended the Fire Academy graduation 

ceremonies for 3 new Storey County fire fighters.  
• Next week he will attend the Ignites Symposium, which will cover many subjects 

including issues with homeowner’s insurance coverage. 
• The Nevada Fire Chiefs Association has 15 bills they are monitoring. 
• The district will have prescribed burns tomorrow through Thursday in the Highlands. 

These are small pile burnings. They will keep the public informed through social media. 
 

Operations and Projects 
• Coordinator Mike Northan said the Lockwood Senior Center project was progressing 

well. 



• The Fairgrounds project bid was suspended due to the Buy American, Build American
Act. Mr. Northan said he needs to coordinate with other agencies before resuming the
process.

Emergency Management 
• Director Adam Wilson gave a progress review of the department covering 2023-2024. In

July 23, this was a one-person shop, now we are certified in the state. We have worked on
regional cooperation. He said his department:

o Brought emergency planning in-house, saving $180,000 per year.
o Held numerous community outreach meetings.
o Conducted tabletop emergency management exercises.
o Successfully applied for grants for fire district and sheriff’s office.
o Assisted Carson City on Nevada Day.
o Increased software capabilities improving mass communication.
o Helped with the Davis Fire and with power outages in the Highlands.
o Received grants for first-aid kits in county vehicles.
o Updated the hazard mitigation plans.
o Created a safety committee.
o Worked with various agencies and groups, including the Storey County School

District, the Fire District, and Community Chest.
o Created an evacuation and shelter manual.
o Conducted training on active shooter situations.
o Created a long-term recovering plan manual and storm disaster recovery process.
o Partnered with business and other local governments to expand preparedness.
o Has attended conferences and symposia to enhance knowledge and capability.

Health and Community Services 
• Stacy York said her department served 5,510 congregate meals, 25,071 home-delivered

meals, and 20,000 meals between the schools and the jail.
• The kitchen in VC produces over 50,000 meals a year
• Homemaker hours have remained consistent at 600 a year
• Transportation has provided 3,200 rides for 160 different people.
• Food pantries in VC served 105 people in 2024, an increase from 50 in 2023; Mark

Twain served 169 people, an increase from 114, and Lockwood served 250 people, an
increase from 205.

Public Information 
• Public Information Officer Julia Moreno-Fritz said the Storey County commercial is

airing on Nevada Newsmakers
• She is working on Google ads and will be writing stories for the Comstock Chronicle.



County Manager 
• County Manager Austin Osborne said the Storey County housing plan is complete and

will be sent to the governor. He said there is a substantial amount of housing built along
I80, and the county included information on “attainable” housing.

Planning Commission 
• Commissioner Lee Sterrett expanded on his public comment regarding his attendance at

the meeting of the Nevada Water Resources Association. He said there are 256
groundwater basins in Nevada as of 2019, and 50 percent were fully or over-committed.
Nevada received a $25 million dollar grant to buy back water rights in basins which were
over-committed and over-pumped. The grant was for 2,500 acre-feet of water rights,
which were then retired.

Community Chest 
• Eric Schoen said the expansion of the early childhood education center was nearly ready

after sprinklers and fireproof doors are installed.
• The Community Chest receives federal funding, and if those funds are delayed or cut, the

organization has funds to keep operations going for at least six months. The CCI is
developing contingency plans if funds are cut, and all programs remain open.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment): None

10. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval for the
County Manager to sign and enter into a contract with Actalent for the provision of
temporary construction staffing services to help meet project deadlines not to exceed
$165,000.

Human Resources Manager Brandie Lopez said she wants to establish a relationship to meet
demands and time limits the County is currently experiencing with existing contracts and
grants. This is for temporary labor. The County can adjust the workforce as needed.  This is a
new company.

County Manager Austin Osborne said to get the projects done and meeting the timelines of
the grants, we looked at other companies and looked at doing it in-house, and Actalent
provided the best return on money and effort.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the County Manager to sign and enter a
contract with Actalent for the provision of temporary construction staffing services to help
meet project deadlines not to exceed $165,000. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.



11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
authorize the County Manager to approve and sign a contract addendum between Storey
County and Cintas Corporation No. 2, doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, for an
additional AED to be located at the Storey County Community Development Office.

Administrative Officer Lisa Maciel said this is to add another AED to the development
office. The closest one  to this office is at Public Works.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize the County Manager to approve and
sign an addendum to the contract between Storey County and Cintas Corporation No. 2,
doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, to add an additional AED to the contract to be
placed in the Community Development Office. Under this contract, Cintas will supply Storey
County with Automatic External Defibrillators, along with related products and services for
an additional $126.00 per month. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and Possible approval of Grant
of Easement file 2025-017 from Storey County to NV Energy for Utility Facilities within the
C Street Right-of-Way near Flowery Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada to facilitate
project development.

Planning Manager Kathy Canfield said this is a request from NVEnergy to provide service,
between an area that NDOT considers their right-of-way and private property.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to approve Grant of Easement 2025-017 from Storey County to NV Energy for Utility
Facilities within the C Street Right-of-Way near Flowery Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada to facilitate project development. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.

13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible approval of County
staff regarding pending federal appropriation requests for federal fiscal year 2025, and
dependent on the passage of the 2025 federal fiscal year budget, federal appropriation
proposals for federal fiscal year 2026.

Grants Manager Sara Sturtz said the county submitted 4 requests. Two were included in 2025
- the mobile emergency command center and Divide water project. If Congress passes
another continuing resolution after March14, we will seek to prepare for either re-submitting



these as well as requests for Piper’s Opera House, the public safety complex, the Silver City 
water main line replacement, and the Courthouse earthquake retrofit.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve County staff to proceed with submitting 
the 2026 federal appropriation requests for the Virginia City Public Safety Complex, Silver 
City Water Main Line Replacement, Courthouse Earthquake Retrofit, and the resubmission 
of the Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A Street Roadway 
Improvement, and, if a continuing resolution necessitates resubmission of 2025 requests, to 
submit the Mobile Emergency Command Center, Divide Water Main Replacement, the 
Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A Street Roadway Improvement, 
and the Virginia City Public Safety Complex. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion 
passed unanimously. 

14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
authorize Storey County Business Development to reallocate an amount not to exceed $4,000
of budgeted and available funds from the Professional Services account to host regional
attendees at the National Association of Counties annual Legislative conference.

Business Development Officer Lara Mather said this happened last year, with the Nevada
Association of Counties as the host, and Storey County as the sponsor. It allowed us to have a
captive audience of Nevada staff, officials and elected representatives and was very
successful. Ms. Mather has reached out to host another dinner the first week of March.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the authorization for Storey County
Business Development to re-allocate an amount not to exceed $4,000 of budgeted and
available funds from the Professional account to host regional attendees at the National
Association of Counties annual Legislative conference. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
authorize Storey County Business Development to author and submit a letter supporting SB5
to make the Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent
fixture within the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

Ms. Mather said OSBA was created in the 2021 legislative session. The original bill has a 2-
year sunset. SB5 takes that bill and gets ride of the sunset date. She has worked with this
office, providing resource fairs, town halls and forums. She said it is an important resource.



Commissioner Mitchell was unsure about how much regulatory friction could come about in 
the future. Ms. Mather said there was talk of moving this under GOED, but Staff wants it to 
stay under the Lt. Governor’s Office to avoid conflict.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize Storey County Business Development 
to author and submit a letter supporting SB5 to make the Lieutenant Governor’s Office of 
Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent fixture within the Office of the Lieutenant 
Governor. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

16. DISCUSSION ONLY: Storey County FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said this is a final financial review of the second quarter. At
midpoint the General Fund is tracking at 82 percent of revenue, slightly higher than last year.
Ad valorem is at 79 percent. We expect that to level off in the 3rd and 4th quarters. One of the
highest is building permits, now at 148 percent collected. This is due to Tesla paying for
building permits now and an increased number of data centers. Countywide revenues are at
65 percent collected with most funds performing as expected. General Fund expenditures are
42 percent of plan. Of the expenditures, 41 percent are wages, and 32 percent are benefits.
With merit wage increases coming soon and new benefit negotiations, those may increase
before fiscal year-end. All departments are trending at or below expectations.

Ms. McCain said most funds were reported as anticipated, except earned interest which the
Clerk & Treasurer’s Office is working to get up to date. She enumerated specific funds and
their current needs, but said some higher numbers do not worry her department. All
departments and funds are actively monitored.

Public Comment: None

17. DISCUSSION ONLY: County Manager to provide a quarterly report to the board.

County Manager Austin Osborne said this is a quarterly report on what is going on
administratively.
• Legislative matters: working with Julia and the team to implement commercials and

online promotion. We are putting booklets together for the Legislature.
• Community Development: code enforcement is a new activity in the office. About 33

average nuisance complaints per month are received, 2.66 per month are abated, 12.5
percent of them are complying, and 33 percent are in the criminal nuisance prevention
program. Building inspections are up and the county may have to adopt the new
International Code Council regulations.

• Capital Improvement Plan: projects totaling multi-millions of dollars are being scheduled
so Treasury/Comptroller can prepare to have money on hand. Staffing and contract



assistance requirements are being planned. He said the jail project must be done, water 
infrastructure and the Road Improvement Plan. We are doing a facilities’ needs 
assessment, looking at future needs, and developing a plan.  

• Piper’s Opera House: we are still working with the respondent on that, and what is
complicated about that is that there are major key structural elements that are not part of
rehabilitation, but beams and pillars, and all this has contract implications.

• County Transfer Station: based on the school district’s unified schools plan, the County is
investigating a plan to move the Transfer Station to the old dump off of Six Mile Canyon.
There are Nevada Division of Environmental Protection issues, Superfund matters, and
ingress/egress safety issues to be overcome.

• Budget: departments are planning next year’s needs. We are looking at bringing in a staff
engineer, as everything is getting more complex.

• Comstock Cemetery Foundation: the Memorandum of Understanding is still in place and
we need to do an expansion of the area available as there are only 35 plots left.

• Marlette Water Plan: we are in discussions with the state and still have an MOU in place.
• Planning Department: the housing needs assessment is being done, along with updating

zoning and other ordinances.
• Capital Improvement Plan: a few major projects include for Virginia City are the

broadband project, water system upgrades, B Street waterline and paving project, and O
Street drainage. For TRI Center, Station 75, Emergency Management office, Electric
Avenue traffic signal, and flood mitigation planning. For the Highlands, the Lousetown
Road Project, the community center cleanup and upgrade and broadband will be next. For
Lockwood, the sheriff’s substation is done, the community center and flood mitigation
planning. For Mark Twain, drainages and culverts and roads. A reader board will be at the
community center, which will be rehabilitated, and then the truck turn-around.

Public Comment: None 

18. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to
purchase 3 new Laser Turbidimeters and 4 new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at
the Water Treatment Plant in the amount of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to
exceed $5,000 for a grand total of $37,281.35.

Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki said the County’s turbidimeters are obsolete. New
ones will measure the particulates in the water to optimize water filter performance and
chemical dosage and disinfection.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the purchase of 3 new Laser
Turbidimeters and 4 new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at the Water Treatment



Plant in the amount of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to exceed $5,000 for a 
grand total of $37,281.35. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

20. DISCUSSION ONLY: Water-Sewer FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said funds are trending as we expected at about 50 percent of
plan. Water is at 52 percent collected for services; Sewer is at 48 percent. Overall, there is a
concern the budget for rates is not supporting ongoing operations. Expenses for both of these
funds are trending slightly below expectations, with 64 percent available in the Water Fund
and 61 percent available in the Sewer Fund. Wages and benefits are tracking as expected. We
are always trying to increase the ending fund balances for both funds.

Public Comment: None

21. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

22. DISCUSSION ONLY: Fire District FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

Ms. McCain said for the second quarter review, the Fire District has collected almost 90
percent of the planned budgeted revenue, but that will level out due to Ad Valorem collection,
just like the County budget. There is a significantly high collection rate for building permits
due to Tesla now paying for permits and increased data facilities. This, however, can change
at any time. Expenses are tracking to plan at 38 percent usage, as expected. Transfer and
budget augmentations still must be addressed. The Fire District Capital Fund will have a
deficiency due to the recent property acquisition for the TRIC station. Mutal Aid fund for
out-of-district fires revenues are tracking to plan. The Capital Fund has large pieces of
equipment that are on order which will roll over in to future fiscal plans until more
reasonable delivery dates are set. We will still need transfers and augmentations for this fund.
We expect to see significant changes to these plans as the chief builds out on the new
property.

Public Comment: None

23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval for policy
P603 Sick Leave and policy P602 Annual Leave with modifications allowing leave buyout
amounts at the time of retirement to be utilized to purchase PERS service credits.

Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar said on both policies, if approved, the effective date would be
today. There are a lot of retirements coming up. Involved HR consultant Jeanne Green on
this. New firefighters mean cost savings.

Public Comment: None



Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the modifications to policy P603 
Sick Leave and policy P602 Annual Leave. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion 
passed unanimously. 

24. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to dispose
of by means of auction, donation, sale, or trade-in, of a 2006 Yukon and a 2006 Ford F350
Dozer tender.

Chief Loncar said both units need replacement. He said the Yukon went to the County for an
emergency management vehicle. Dozer tender is going to auction. It has been a money pit.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the disposal of a 2006 Yukon and a
2006 Ford F350 Dozer tender by means of auction, donation, sale, or trade-in. Seconded by:
Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

25. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD

26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Election of Secretary to the Board of Storey
County Highway Commissioners for the term of one year.

County Manager Austin Osborne said this is to choose which of you would like to serve.
Commissioner Mitchell is the incumbant.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to elect myself as the Secretary to the Board of
Storey County Highway Commissioners for the term of one year. Seconded by: Donald
Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

27. DISCUSSION ONLY: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways
throughout Storey County.

Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki said he:
• Met with DOWL over last few weeks regarding the full reconstruction on B street and

Union Street. There is no base under any of these roads. The cost was $3.3 million and is
now $4.7 million.

• We are working on the Six Mile Canyon Turnaround Project.
• We are working on the Road Capital Improvement Program for the next 4 years.

Public Comment: None 



28. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS  

 
29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible consideration 

approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office receipt of a Grant from the State of Nevada 
Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the amount of 
$30,836.64, Federal Award# l SPBJA-21-GG-00252-MUMU, to be used for travel and 
equipment purchase of 2 drug detection K9s and miscellaneous costs associated with this 
purchase.  

 
Sheriff Mike Cullen said this the first part of two-part grant, awarding $30,836.64 from the 
Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance to purchase 2 
drug detection K9s, and related travel and misc. costs associated with this purchase. These 
funds will be used along with other grant funds to establish our drug detection K9 program. 
The unbudgeted revenues and expenses for this grant will be accounted for in the County’s 
Grant Fund and may possibly create the need for an augmentation or transfer at the end of the 
year. 

 
Commissioner Gilman supported the program, but asked, this is for 2 canine units. The 
existing dog is donated. He said he has worked with canines and thinks dogs de-escalate 
situations. He noted a lot of drug issues along USA Parkway.  

 
Commissioner Mitchell asked how the canines would be used. Sheriff Cullen reiterated they 
were drug detection dogs, which currently must be requested for support from regional law 
enforcement agencies, causing a delay. He said they could be used for businesses, schools or 
anyone else who asks for assistance. They could also be used for traffic stops.  

 
As to ancillary costs, Sheriff Cullen said the grant is re-occurring. We will have a line-item of 
$5,000. We are happy with the donations for the existing dogs for food and care. He said 
there may have to be modifications to vehicles to accommodate the new dogs. 

 
The sheriff also said that the Courts have ruled that if the dog hits on a vehicle, that gives the 
deputy probable cause to search the vehicle without a warrant. He said a fentanyl drug house 
was raided, just 20 feet from the middle school. 

 
Commissioner Carmona asked about the conditions for the grant. Sheriff Cullen said the 
funds must be spent quickly. He heard of three dogs, but Sheriff Cullen said Lux is the only 
volunteer dog. Deputy Jessup has paid for training himself. He said that if the grants end, the 
dogs could be retired, most likely staying with their handlers, but younger, newer dogs last 
longer. There are two vehicles capable of carrying dogs. The grant funds are for the one-time 
purchase of the dogs and the training to get them started. 

 



Commissioner Carmona was concerned about handler costs or other costs. Sheriff Cullen 
said that was included in the grant. Commissioner Carmona said he would like to see better 
numbers for any risks to the county, including modification for cars, POOL/PACT insurance. 

In response to questions from Commissioner Gilman, Sheriff Cullen said the dogs would 
belong to the county, and if the grant was discontinued the dogs could be retired. 

Commissioner Mitchell suggested continuing the item for more information. 

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said there could be unbudgeted costs, such as 5 percent to the 
deputy that becomes the handler $3,000 per person or more. She also asked when the dogs 
would be ready and if revenue would come from this investment. Sheriff Cullen said the dogs 
will be ready when they are purchased, then training for the officers and should be ready by 
mid-summer. He said dogs are a deterrent, but not a revenue source. He said they were 
lifesaving, as that day meth and fentanyl were found on an employee at Tesla. He noted other 
cases as well.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to continue this item to our next scheduled 
commission meeting and ask the sheriff to provide a cost breakdown as to what the fiscal 
impact would be should these grants not be in the picture, and any other anticipated ongoing 
costs. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible consideration
approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office to receive a grant from the State of Nevada
Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the Amount of
$15,000, Federal Award Number l SPBJA-22-GG-00625-MUMU to be used for training and
travel and misc. equipment indicated as other for deputies assigned to the Storey County
Sheriff's Office Drug Initiative Program.

Sheriff Cullen said this is part two of what we just finished discussing.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to continue this item as well to our next regularly
scheduled meeting on Feb. 18, 2024, for consideration. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

31. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and consideration approving the
Storey County Sheriff's Office to receive one Humvee 4-wheel-drive vehicle Serial Number l
4016NV00004 from the Douglas County Sheriff's Office through the State of Nevada l 033



LESO program for use as a Search and Rescue Vehicle as well as use in parades and for 
community outreach events.  

Sheriff Cullen said Douglas County had this vehicle and it is now offered through the state. 
He wanted to fix it up and use it for search and rescue, along with the Fire District. He plans 
on using the United We Stand grant to pay for it. The commissioners discussed costs, and 
Sheriff Cullen said he was also concerned, but planned on using it for public events as well 
as search and rescue. He said he would rather a free vehicle get banged up rather than one the 
County paid for. He said some OHVs are limited in use for search and rescue. This vehicle 
can carry quite a few people along with equipment and can pull a vehicle out of a difficult 
area. He said much of the work will be done by volunteers. 

County Manager Austin Osborne said it was important to make sure auxiliary vehicles are 
not a burden on the shop.  

Commissioner Carmona said he didn’t like Humvees as they were expensive to maintain. He 
was concerned about the impression more vehicle/equipment purchases leave on 
constituents. 

Commissioner Gilman suggested continuing this to the next meeting. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to continue this item regarding the donation of a 
Humvee vehicle to the Sheriff’s Office from the Douglas County Sheriff’s Office to our next 
regularly scheduled meeting on Feb. 18. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

32. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to re-
appoint Scott Jolcover to a 4-year term on the Storey County Board of Equalization.

Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle said this is to address the re-appointment of Scott Jolcover to a
four-year term to the board, which hears appeals to property assessments.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to reappoint Scott Jolcover for a 4-year term on the
Storey County Board of Equalization. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

33. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to accept
a quote from Coons Construction for site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide
sidewalk widening for ADA compliance, bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in



an amount not to exceed $21,478.00 and to authorize the County Manager to sign the 
contract for construction.  

Operations and Projects Coordinator Mike Northan said this work will improve ADA 
compliance, vehicle barriers for security and a flagpole. This was budgeted in the Capital 
Improvement Plan and the contract underwent review from the District Attorney’s Office. 

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said this was budgeted for $15,000 and the balance will be 
absorbed into the Justice Court’s Special Revenue Fund. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to accept the quote from Coons Construction for 
site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide sidewalk widening for ADA compliance, 
bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in an amount not to exceed $21,478.00 and to 
authorize the County Manager to sign the contract for construction. Seconded by: Donald 
Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

34. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Update, discussion, and provide direction to
county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County
including, but not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement
programming, SB78 amending regulations related to the Comstock Historic District
Commission; AB77 tax abatements; BDR S-404 V&T Railway, AB14 voter registration of
candidates; AB70 energy; AB96 master plans contents; AB64 open meeting law; AB66
addition of district judges; proposals relating to the number of required planning
commissioners; and other bills and BDRs potentially affecting Storey County.

County Manager Austin Osborne said there is no new news on these, but it is a standing item.
• SB69 does have a hearing scheduled for Feb. 13 before Revenue and Finance and Storey

County will give a presentation. Commissioner Mitchell said meetings have been set up.
• Mr. Osborne said SB78, the Comstock Historic District bill, will not apply to the CHD.

We don’t have that in writing, so we are still following and discussing possible County
control with state and other counties. Commissioner Mitchell wants to oppose SB78,
because if there is one thing you want to change, it is seen as opposition, so he wants it
on the record.

• Mr. Osborne said the legislative team is monitoring conversations regarding NDOT, but
are getting hints of revenue-sharing. This is not currently in any bill being considered.

• AB77 deals with abatements. Commissioner Gilman said he dislikes one element of the
bill that gives GOED final approval of applications. Mr. Osborne is taking note of this as
part of direction from the board. Mr. Osborne said if a bill came that would block a
company from coming to Storey County that we would oppose it, and the commissioners
agreed.



• For the last 12 years, we have worked with Quad Counties; Lyon, Douglas, Storey and
Carson City, but to maintain coordinated communications with these counties, as we all
have similar issues.

Commissioner Mitchell noted the V&T bill was AB32 by Carson City: we supported the bill 
draft request. He said some bills will impact judicial positions, as Carson City will now add 
another judge. Clerk & Treasurer Jim Hindle said he has had several meetings, and it will 
financially impact Storey County. Mr. Osborne said a new District Court in the County would 
cost $50 million. The jail program is just a jail and some offices. Part of the building 
facilities’ assessments is to build a new District Court, or if the Courthouse is used for only 
the first district court.  

Commissioner Mitchell asked to line-item the NACO bills at the next meeting. Mr. Osborne 
said yes, and that all our elected officials are monitoring their own bills as well. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct staff and lobbyists to represent Storey 
County on known BDRs, bills, and other potential legislation affecting Storey County as 
follows: to take the discussion and notes from that discussion on the record today and 
implement it. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

35. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:
A. 24/7 Rapid Repair Services– Out of County / 8368 Almadine Dr. ~ Sacramento, CA
B. ABS Facility Services – Contractor / 560 S. Promenade Ave. Ste 101 ~ Corona, CA
C. Amundson Roofing – Contractor / 300 395 US Highway ~ New Washoe City, NV
D. Blusky Restoration Contractors LLC – Contractor / 9110 E. Nichols Ave. Ste. 180 ~ Centennial, CO
E. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 275 Gallaway Ln. ~ Reno, NV
F. EPC Services Company – Contractor / 1241 S 31st St. W. ~ Billings, MT
G. GGRM Law firm – General / 420 USA Parkway # 106 ~ McCarran, NV
H. I.S.E. Plumbing, Heating & Air – Contractor / 3551 Penn National Dr. ~ Reno, NV
I. Keller North America, Inc. – Contractor / 7550 Teague Rd. Ste. 300 ~ Hanover, MD
J. Kroeker Inc. – Contractor / 4627 S. Chestnut Ave. ~ Fresno, CA
K. Masterfield Construction – Contractor / 1455 Deming Way # 12 ~ Sparks, NV
L. Mini Mart – General / 580 E. Sydney ~ McCarran, NV
M. Treats Galore LLC – Out of County / 575 Magistrate Ct. ~ Reno, NV

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the second readings of business licenses 
under Item #35 listed as A-M. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 



36. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): None

37. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
Commission Chairman Carmona adjourned the meeting at 12:48 p.m.

38. CLOSED SESSION: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations with the Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227. This meeting
will commence immediately following the regular commission meeting.

39. CLOSED SESSION: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for
the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor
negotiations with the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME
Local 4041. This meeting will begin immediately following the closed session with the
Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk & Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. ABSCO Fire Protection LLC – Contractor / 9025 Spanish Trail ~ Sparks, NV
• B. All Crane Service LLC – Out of County / 1000 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
• C. Crusoe Energy Systems, LLC – Out of County / 255 Fillmore St. Ste. 400 ~ Denver,

CO
• D. DeHart Recycling Equipment Inc. – Out of County / 11862 Missouri Bottom Rd. ~

Hazelwood, MO
• E. Guzman & Sons Drywall LLC – Contractor / 5385 Jon. Dr. ~ Sun Valley, NV
• F. Harrison Nevcon LLC – Contractor / 503 Sam Clemens ~ Dayton, NV
• G. Kinetic Cutting Systems Inc. – Out of County / 10960 Zaiser Rd. ~ West Burlington,

IA
• H. ORR Protections Systems, Inc. – Contractor / 6761 Sierra Ct. Ste A ~Dublin, CA
• I. Paul Davis Restoration of Reno & Lake Tahoe – Contractor / 650 Innovation Dr. Ste. A

~ Reno, NV
• J. Sierra Design Concrete – Contractor / 130 Circuit Ct. ~ Sparks, NV
• K. The Shrinkwrap Co., LLC – Out of County / 2400 Sharon Way ~ Reno, NV
• L. WEIMA America Inc. – Out of County / 3678 Centre Cir. ~ Fort Mill, SC
• M. X Burger – Food Truck / 984 Leah Cir ~ Reno, NV

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

     7  I



• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office February 24, 2025 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the March 4, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. ABSCO Fire Protection LLC – Contractor / 9025 Spanish Trail ~ Sparks, NV

B. All Crane Service LLC – Out of County / 1000 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV

C. Crusoe Energy Systems, LLC – Out of County / 255 Fillmore St. Ste. 400 ~ Denver, CO

D. DeHart Recycling Equipment Inc. – Out of County / 11862 Missouri Bottom Rd. ~ Hazelwood, MO

E. Guzman & Sons Drywall LLC – Contractor / 5385 Jon. Dr. ~ Sun Valley, NV

F. Harrison Nevcon LLC – Contractor / 503 Sam Clemens ~ Dayton, NV

G. Kinetic Cutting Systems Inc. – Out of County / 10960 Zaiser Rd. ~ West Burlington, IA

H. ORR Protections Systems, Inc. – Contractor / 6761 Sierra Ct. Ste A ~Dublin, CA

I. Paul Davis Restoration of Reno & Lake Tahoe – Contractor / 650 Innovation Dr. Ste. A ~ Reno, NV

J. Sierra Design Concrete – Contractor / 130 Circuit Ct. ~ Sparks, NV

K. The Shrinkwrap Co., LLC – Out of County / 2400 Sharon Way ~ Reno, NV

L. WEIMA America Inc. – Out of County / 3678 Centre Cir. ~ Fort Mill, SC

M. X Burger – Food Truck / 984 Leah Cir ~ Reno, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $4,916,959.73.

• Recommended motion: Approval fo claims as submitted.

• Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Please find attached claims.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      7  II





























































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel Policy 1001
Disciplinary Actions and Appeals.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with staff recommendation, I (commissioner)
mov to approve the revisions to Personnel Policy 1001 Disciplinary Actions and Appeals.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: We are requesting approval of Personnel Policy 1001 Disciplinary
Actions and Appeals. This policy has been reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure
alignment with current regulations and best practices. The revisions are intended to
strengthen our organizational framework and provide clear guidelines for personnel
management moving forward.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        7  III



Page 1 of 7 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE   NUMBER  1001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:   01-06-09

REVISED:            08-03-10/4-05-11

REVISED:      12-04-18/01-13-2020

 03/04/2025 

AUTHORITY: BOC 

COUNTY MANAGER:            AO 

SUBJECT: DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AND APPEALS 

POLICY: Storey County takes seriously all complaints of misconduct under its policies. 

Storey County will accept and address all complaints of misconduct in accordance with this policy. 

It is also the policy of the county to ensure that complaints of misconduct can be reported without 

concern for reprisal or retaliation.  

1.1 Purpose 

This policy provides guidelines for noticing potential discipline, providing due process, 

disciplining, and providing for appeals of discipline in a justified and fair manner. Investigations 

of alleged misconduct will conform to Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged Misconduct. This 

policy does not apply to elected officials, department heads, the County Manager, or any other 

employee deemed at-will, and it is not intended to create due process rights for those specific 

individuals. Department heads and the County Manager are at-will employees, and nothing in this 

policy is intended to create due process rights for those individuals. 

1.2      Justification for Discipline 

Disciplinary action, up to and including termination, may be taken against an employee for 

unsatisfactory performance or for misconduct including, but not limited to, the following:  

a. Conduct unbecoming an employee in the employer’s service, or discourteous treatment of

members of the public or a fellow employee, or any other act of omission or commission

that impacts negatively on the public’s perception of the integrity or credibility of the

employer or erodes the public confidence in the employer.

b. Falsification of or making a material omission on forms, records, or reports including

applications, timecards, and other employer records.

c. Absence from work without permission or without notification to an appropriate

supervisor or manager, habitual absence or tardiness, or misuse of sick leave.

d. Unauthorized possession, removal, or use of the employer’s property including, but not

limited to, funds, records, keys, confidential information of any kind, equipment, supplies,

or any other materials.

e. Disseminating confidential information to unauthorized persons within and outside the

workplace.

f. Insubordination, refusing to follow directions, or other disrespectful conduct directed

toward a supervisor or manager.



Page 2 of 7 

g. Sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior directed toward another employee,

member of the public, vendor, or anyone doing business with the employer, or anyone

present on premises owned or controlled by the employer.

h. Actual or threatened physical violence including, but not limited to, intimidation, overt or

subtle threats, harassment, stalking, or any form of coercion, except as may be required of

a peace officer in the course of his/her duties.

i. Possession or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol on property owned or controlled by

the employer or while on duty or during an on-call status.

j. Possession, bringing, or aiding others in bringing unauthorized firearms, weapons,

hazardous biological material or chemicals, or other dangerous substances onto property

owned or controlled by the employer.

k. Violation of safety or health policies or practices or engaging in conduct that creates a

safety or health hazard to other employees, the public, vendors, or him/herself.

l. Dishonesty, including intentionally or negligently providing false information,

intentionally falsifying records, employment applications, or other documents.

m. Willfully or intentionally violating or failing to comply with the employer’s policies,

rules, regulations, and/or procedures.

n. Unsatisfactory work performance.

o. Failure to demonstrate professionalism, courtesy, tact, and discretion in all interactions

with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion; remain safe,

socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

1.3 Forms of Disciplinary Action

a. Disciplinary action includes, but is not limited to, one or more of the following:

i. Verbal warning (document time, date, and subject)

ii. Written reprimand

iii. Suspension

iv. Pay reduction

v. Demotion

vi. Termination (Reference: Section D Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees

of Counties, Cities and Incorporated Towns and Unincorporated Towns)

b. A department head or the County Manager who is intending to impose disciplinary action

of the above items 1.3(a)(iii-vi) shall first consult with the Administrative Officer and/or

Personnel Director before any action is taken in order to ensure that all policies and

procedures have been followed correctly.

c. Employees’ signed copies of the above items section 1.3(a)(i-vi) must be placed in

employees master personnel file, and a copy provided to employees. The discipline will

remain in the employee’s master personnel file for the following durations or otherwise if

specified in a collective bargaining agreement, and in accordance with records retention

statutes. When the discipline is eligible to be removed from the master personnel file, the

employee may submit a request in writing to the Human Resources office for the file to



Page 3 of 7 

be removed from that file. The Human Resources office will have 30 days from receipt of 

the request to remove the discipline subject to removal. 

i. Verbal warning – 12 months;

ii. Written reprimand – 18 months;

iii. Suspension – 24 months;

iv. Pay reduction – permanent;

v. Demotion – permanent;

vi. Termination – permanent.

d. FLSA Exempt employees are subject to the following rules regarding disciplinary pay

deductions and unpaid suspensions:

i. Pay deductions may only be made in cases of violations of safety rules of major

significance, including those rules related to the prevention of serious danger in

the workplace or to other employees. An example would be violating a rule that

prohibits smoking around flammable material.  Deductions can be made in any

amount.

ii. Unpaid suspensions may be imposed for infractions of workplace conduct rules,

such as rules prohibiting sexual harassment, workplace violence, drug or

alcohol use, or for violating state or federal laws.  The suspension must be for

serious misconduct, not for performance issues. Suspensions must be in full-

day increments.

iii. Suspensions for performance issues must be made in full-week increments.

1.4   Investigation 

An investigation of any employee may be conducted in response to a complaint or allegation that 

the employee engaged in activity or behavior that violated county administrative policies. The 

investigation will be performed in accordance with Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged 

Misconduct. The investigation of law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289. 

1.5     Due Process 

The employee may utilize due process provided for in this policy or s/he may utilize due process, 

such as the grievance process, set forth in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, but the 

employee may not utilize both processes.  

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, prior to taking 

disciplinary action involving suspension reduction in pay, demotion, or termination against an 

employee, the employer will take action intended to ensure that the employee is afforded due 

process. Due process in regard to employment-related disciplinary action includes, among other 

actions, making certain the employee is provided notice of the reason for the disciplinary action 

and is given the opportunity to provide a response to the proposed disciplinary action prior to an 

appropriate supervisor making a final decision regarding the disciplinary action.  



Page 4 of 7 

A. Notice of Intent to Discipline

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, in In

situations where the proposed disciplinary action involves a suspension, a reduction in pay,

a demotion, and/or termination, written notice of the proposed disciplinary action will be

hand-delivered or sent certified mail to the employee. The notice will include the following

information:

The nature of the disciplinary action proposed; 

The effective date of the proposed disciplinary action; 

A statement of the proposed disciplinary action with documentation, statements, 

and/or other evidence supporting the proposed disciplinary action; 

A statement advising the employee of his/her right to file a written response, or to 

submit a written request for a pre-disciplinary conference with the Personnel 

Director and/or Administrative Officer within 5 work days of receipt of the notice 

of proposed disciplinary action; and 

A statement that the employee’s failure to file a written response or request a pre-

disciplinary conference in a timely manner, or to appear at the pre-disciplinary 

conference after requesting such, will constitute a forfeiture of the employee’s 

rights to any further appeal.  (Reference: Section 1.6  Public Hearing for Dismissed 

Employees Pursuant to NRS) 

B. Employee Review of Allegation and Evidence

If the regular employee requests, s/he will be given the opportunity, as soon as practical,

to review the documents or other evidence, if any (except for attorney-client privileged

documents), on which the proposed disciplinary action is based.

The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will restrict the employee to “in-

camera” (in chambers) review only, in which s/he may review the documents under close

supervision of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, or his/her designee,

will be allowed to take notes, but will not be allowed to photocopy, photograph, video,

record, duplicate, or otherwise keep the documents or materials. The employee may have

up to two representative present during the review and the representative(s) may review

the documents with the employee, as allowed by the employee, under the same restrictions.

C. Pre-Disciplinary Conference

When the employee requests a conference after receipt of the proposed disciplinary action,

but prior to any disciplinary action being imposed, the Administrative Officer and/or

Personnel Director will schedule a meeting with the employee and his/her representative(s)

(if the employee requests a representative(s) be present) and the department head in a

timely manner to review the reason for and basis of the proposed disciplinary action. At

this conference, the department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel

Director will also provide the employee with an opportunity to present relevant information

which may impact the nature or severity of the proposed disciplinary action.

The pre-disciplinary process is intended to provide the employee opportunity to present to

the department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director a written or



Page 5 of 7 

oral response after having the opportunity to review the supporting materials and prior to 

imposed discipline. The employee must consider the following: 

The response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing; 

Although the employee may be represented by one or more uninvolved 

representative and/or by  legal counsel, the response is not intended to 

accommodate the presentation of testimony or witnesses; 

The employee may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the 

employee may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the 

department head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director to 

consider; 

In the event that the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director decides to 

cause further investigation, the employee will be provided with a summary of  the 

investigation results prior to imposed discipline; 

The employee may, thereafter, have the opportunity to further respond orally or in 

writing to the department head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel 

Director on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent materials. 

D. Implementation of Discipline

No later than 5 work days from receipt of the employee’s written response or conclusion

of the pre-disciplinary conference, the department head, after consultation with the

Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, will issue a written decision to the

affected employee. The written decision will inform the employee that:

The proposed disciplinary action will be implemented; or 

The proposed disciplinary action will be modified, with an explanation; or 

The proposed disciplinary action will be rescinded, with explanation; or 

That additional time is needed for the employer to review new evidence and/or to 

interview additional witnesses brought forth by the employee during the pre-

disciplinary conference [see section (C) Pre-Disciplinary Conference]. 

Nothing in this policy, regardless of whether discipline is or is not administered, shall 

preclude or prevent the department head or the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel 

Director from requiring the subject employee to undergo additional training and 

professional development, participate in an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to 

address job-related matters and consistence with business necessity, or undergo follow-up 

or ongoing consultation with the Human Resources office or other employee improvement 

program that is intended to correct and improve employee behavior or performance. 

Disciplinary action for law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289. 

E. Resignation or Retirement Prior to Discipline

In the event that the accused employee tenders a written resignation or notice of retirement

prior to the imposition of discipline, the situation shall be noted in the file, except as may

be limited by NRS 289 for law enforcement personnel. The tender of a resignation or



Page 6 of 7 

retirement by itself will not serve as the grounds for the termination of any pending 

investigation or discipline. 

F. Appeal

Unless the employee utilizes the appeal process set forth in a contract or the 

applicable collective bargaining agreement, the affected employee may appeal the 

disciplinary action to the County Manager by filing a written appeal with the 

Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director within 5 work days of the 

effective date of the disciplinary action.  

In the event that a conflict of interest exists with the County Manager in the case 

involving discipline, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will 

seek a qualified County Manager or City Manager from a jurisdiction outside of 

Storey County, preferably a county with reasonably similar staff numbers and 

other organizational characteristics to Storey County, located in the State of 

Nevada, to serve as the appellate. 

The written appeal must state the basis of the appeal and contain a specific 

admission or denial of each of the material statements in the decision. If an 

employee fails to file a written appeal conforming to these requirements within 5 

work days as shown in subsection (1) above, s/he is deemed to have waived the 

right to appeal. (Reference: Section 1.6  Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees 

Pursuant to NRS.) 

After the employee has submitted a timely appeal to the Administrative Officer 

and/or Personnel Director, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director 

will set a date for a disciplinary appeal hearing. At such hearing, the employee will 

have the right to be represented by an attorney or other representative retained by 

the employee, to present evidence and argument in response to the disciplinary 

action, and to question and cross-examine adverse witnesses. The hearing may be 

conducted informally without conforming to the formal rules of evidence and such 

informality of the hearing process shall not invalidate the decision rendered. The 

County Manager will issue to the parties a decision within 5 work days following 

such hearing. The decision of the County Manager is final. 

1.6 Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees Pursuant to NRS 

In accordance with NRS 245.065, when an employee of a county, other than a department head 

or the County Manager, who has been employed by the county for 12 or more months is 

dismissed from employment, the employee may request within 15 days of the date of dismissal a 

written statement specifically setting forth the reasons for the dismissal. Within 15 days of the 

date of the request the employee so dismissed shall be furnished the written statement. Within 30 

days after receipt of the written statement, the dismissed employee may, in writing, request a 

public hearing before the board of county commissioners to determine the reasonableness of the 

action. The board of county commissioners shall grant the dismissed employee a public hearing 

within 15 days after receipt of the written request. At the public hearing, technical rules of 

evidence do not apply. Such dismissed employee is not required to utilize the established pre-

disciplinary conference and appeal process in this policy before requesting a public hearing. 

1.7     Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding 



Page 7 of 7 

By notifying the employee in writing, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director may 

place an employee (including department heads and the County Manager) on administrative leave, 

with or without pay pending an investigation of alleged misconduct or performance deficiencies, 

prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding, or during the review of the employee’s response to a 

proposed disciplinary action.  The notice of administrative leave will include a statement that the 

leave is not a disciplinary action. An employee placed on administrative leave without pay who is 

later reinstated without disciplinary action being imposed will be reimbursed for any pay and 

benefits lost during the administrative leave. 

1.8     False Accusations 

An employee who has been found to have intentionally filed a false report of wrongdoing may be 

subject to discipline up to and including termination. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative 

Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Page 1 of 7 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER       1001
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:        01-06-09    

REVISED:            08-03-10/4-05-11 
REVISED:      12-04-18/01-13-2020 

/03/04/2025 
AUTHORITY: BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:            AO 

SUBJECT: DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AND APPEALS 

POLICY: Storey County takes seriously all complaints of misconduct under its policies. 
Storey County will accept and address all complaints of misconduct in accordance with this policy. 
It is also the policy of the county to ensure that complaints of misconduct can be reported without 
concern for reprisal or retaliation.  

1.1 Purpose 

This policy provides guidelines for noticing potential discipline, providing due process, 
disciplining, and providing for appeals of discipline in a justified and fair manner. Investigations 
of alleged misconduct will conform to Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged Misconduct. This 
policy, except Sections 1.2 and 1.3 does not apply to elected officials, department heads, or the 
County Manager, or any other employee deemed at-will, and it is not intended to create due process 
rights for those specific individuals. Department heads and the County Manager are at-will 
employees, and nothing in this policy is intended to create due process rights for those individuals. 

1.2      Justification for Discipline 

Disciplinary action, up to and including termination, may be taken against an employee for 
unsatisfactory performance or for misconduct including, but not limited to, the following:  

a. Conduct unbecoming an employee in the employer’s service, or discourteous treatment of
members of the public or a fellow employee, or any other act of omission or commission
that impacts negatively on the public’s perception of the integrity or credibility of the
employer or erodes the public confidence in the employer.

b. Falsification of or making a material omission on forms, records, or reports including
applications, time cards, and other employer records.

c. Absence from work without permission or without notification to an appropriate
supervisor or manager, habitual absence or tardiness, or misuse of sick leave.

d. Unauthorized possession, removal, or use of the employer’s property including, but not
limited to, funds, records, keys, confidential information of any kind, equipment, supplies,
or any other materials.

e. Disseminating confidential information to unauthorized persons within and outside the
workplace.

f. Insubordination, refusing to follow directions, or other disrespectful conduct directed
toward a supervisor or manager.



Page 2 of 7 

g. Sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior directed toward another employee,
member of the public, vendor, or anyone doing business with the employer, or anyone
present on premises owned or controlled by the employer.

h. Actual or threatened physical violence including, but not limited to, intimidation, overt or
subtle threats, harassment, stalking, or any form of coercion, except as may be required of
a peace officer in the course of his/her duties.

i. Possession or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol on property owned or controlled by
the employer or while on duty or during an on-call status.

j. Possession, bringing, or aiding others in bringing unauthorized firearms, weapons,
hazardous biological material or chemicals, or other dangerous substances onto property
owned or controlled by the employer.

k. Violation of safety or health policies or practices, or engaging in conduct that creates a
safety or health hazard to other employees, the public, vendors, or him/herself.

l. Dishonesty, including intentionally or negligently providing false information,
intentionally falsifying records, employment applications, or other documents.

m. Willfully or intentionally violating or failing to comply with the employer’s policies,
rules, regulations, and/or procedures.

n. Unsatisfactory work performance.
o. Failure to demonstrate professionalism, courtesy, tact, and discretion in all interactions

with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion; remain safe,
socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

1.3 Forms of Disciplinary Action 

a. Disciplinary action includes, but is not limited to, one or more of the following:
i. Verbal warning (document time, date, and subject)

ii. Written reprimand
iii. Suspension
iv. Pay reduction
v. Demotion

vi. Termination (Reference: Section D Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees
of Counties, Cities and Incorporated Towns and Unincorporated Towns)

b. A department head or the County Manager who is intending to impose disciplinary action
of the above items 1.3(a)(iii-vi) shall first consult with the Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel Director before any action is taken in order to ensure that all policies and
procedures have been followed correctly.

c. Employees’ signed copies of the above items section 1.3(a)(i-vi) must be placed in
employees master personnel file, and a copy provided to employees. The discipline will
remain in the employee’s master personnel file for the following durations or otherwise if
specified in a collective bargaining agreement, and in accordance with records retention
statutes. When the discipline is eligible to be removed from the master personnel file, the
employee may submit a request in writing to the Human Resources office for the file to



Page 3 of 7 

be removed from that file. The Human Resources office will have 30 days from receipt of 
the request to remove the discipline subject to removal. 

i. Verbal warning – 12 months;
ii. Written reprimand – 18 months;

iii. Suspension – 24 months;
iv. Pay reduction – permanent;
v. Demotion – permanent;

vi. Termination – permanent.
d. FLSA Exempt employees are subject to the following rules regarding disciplinary pay

deductions and unpaid suspensions:
i. Pay deductions may only be made in cases of violations of safety rules of major

significance, including those rules related to the prevention of serious danger in
the workplace or to other employees. An example would be violating a rule that
prohibits smoking around flammable material.  Deductions can be made in any
amount.

ii. Unpaid suspensions may be imposed for infractions of workplace conduct rules,
such as rules prohibiting sexual harassment, workplace violence, drug or
alcohol use, or for violating state or federal laws.  The suspension must be for
serious misconduct, not for performance issues. Suspensions must be in full-
day increments.

iii. Suspensions for performance issues must be made in full-week increments.

1.4   Investigation 

An investigation of any employee may be conducted in response to a complaint or allegation that 
the employee engaged in activity or behavior that violated county administrative policies. The 
investigation will be performed in accordance with Policy 1000 Investigations of Alleged 
Misconduct. The investigation of law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289. 

1.5     Due Process 

The employee may utilize due process provided for in this policy or s/he may utilize due process, 
such as the grievance process, set forth in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, but the 
employee may not utilize both processes.  
Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, prior to taking 
disciplinary action involving suspension reduction in pay, demotion, or termination against an 
employee, the employer will take action intended to ensure that the employee is afforded due 
process. Due process in regard to employment-related disciplinary action includes, among other 
actions, making certain the employee is provided notice of the reason for the disciplinary action 
and is given the opportunity to provide a response to the proposed disciplinary action prior to an 
appropriate supervisor making a final decision regarding the disciplinary action.  



Page 4 of 7 

A. Notice of Intent to Discipline

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, in In
situations where the proposed disciplinary action involves a suspension, a reduction in pay,
a demotion, and/or termination, written notice of the proposed disciplinary action will be
hand-delivered or sent certified mail to the employee. The notice will include the following
information:

The nature of the disciplinary action proposed; 
The effective date of the proposed disciplinary action; 
A statement of the proposed disciplinary action with documentation, statements, 
and/or other evidence supporting the proposed disciplinary action; 
A statement advising the employee of his/her right to file a written response, or to 
submit a written request for a pre-disciplinary conference with the Personnel 
Director and/or Administrative Officer within 5 work days of receipt of the notice 
of proposed disciplinary action; and 
A statement that the employee’s failure to file a written response or request a pre-
disciplinary conference in a timely manner, or to appear at the pre-disciplinary 
conference after requesting such, will constitute a forfeiture of the employee’s 
rights to any further appeal.  (Reference: Section 1.6  Public Hearing for Dismissed 
Employees Pursuant to NRS) 

B. Employee Review of Allegation and Evidence

If the regular employee requests, s/he will be given the opportunity, as soon as practical,
to review the documents or other evidence, if any (except for attorney-client privileged
documents), on which the proposed disciplinary action is based.
The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will restrict the employee to “in-
camera” (in chambers) review only, in which s/he may review the documents under close
supervision of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, or his/her designee,
will be allowed to take notes, but will not be allowed to photocopy, photograph, video,
record, duplicate, or otherwise keep the documents or materials. The employee may have
up to two representative present during the review and the representative(s) may review
the documents with the employee, as allowed by the employee, under the same restrictions.

C. Pre-Disciplinary Conference

When the employee requests a conference after receipt of the proposed disciplinary action,
but prior to any disciplinary action being imposed, the Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel Director will schedule a meeting with the employee and his/her representative(s)
(if the employee requests a representative(s) be present) and the department head in a
timely manner to review the reason for and basis of the proposed disciplinary action. At
this conference, the department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director will also provide the employee with an opportunity to present relevant information
which may impact the nature or severity of the proposed disciplinary action.
The pre-disciplinary process is intended to provide the employee opportunity to present to
the department head, and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director a written or



Page 5 of 7 

oral response after having the opportunity to review the supporting materials and prior to 
imposed discipline. The employee must consider the following: 

The response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing; 
Although the employee may be represented by one or more uninvolved 
representative and/or by  legal counsel, the response is not intended to 
accommodate the presentation of testimony or witnesses; 
The employee may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the 
employee may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the 
department head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director to 
consider; 
In the event that the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director decides to 
cause further investigation, the employee will be provided with a summary of  the 
investigation results prior to imposed discipline; 
The employee may, thereafter, have the opportunity to further respond orally or in 
writing to the department head and the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel 
Director on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent materials. 

D. Implementation of Discipline

No later than 5 work days from receipt of the employee’s written response or conclusion
of the pre-disciplinary conference, the department head, after consultation with the
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, will issue a written decision to the
affected employee. The written decision will inform the employee that:

The proposed disciplinary action will be implemented; or 
The proposed disciplinary action will be modified, with an explanation; or 
The proposed disciplinary action will be rescinded, with explanation; or 
That additional time is needed for the employer to review new evidence and/or to 
interview additional witnesses brought forth by the employee during the pre-
disciplinary conference [see section (C) Pre-Disciplinary Conference]. 

Nothing in this policy, regardless of whether discipline is or is not administered, shall 
preclude or prevent the department head or the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel 
Director from requiring the subject employee to undergo additional training and 
professional development, participate in an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to 
address job-related matters and consistence with business necessity, or undergo follow-up 
or ongoing consultation with the Human Resources office or other employee improvement 
program that is intended to correct and improve employee behavior or performance. 
Disciplinary action for law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289. 

E. Resignation or Retirement Prior to Discipline

In the event that the accused employee tenders a written resignation or notice of retirement
prior to the imposition of discipline, the situation shall be noted in the file, except as may
be limited by NRS 289 for law enforcement personnel. The tender of a resignation or



Page 6 of 7 

retirement by itself will not serve as the grounds for the termination of any pending 
investigation or discipline. 

F. Appeal

Unless the employee utilizes the appeal process set forth in a contract or the 
applicable collective bargaining agreement, the affected employee may appeal the 
disciplinary action to the County Manager by filing a written appeal with the 
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director within 5 work days of the 
effective date of the disciplinary action.  
In the event that a conflict of interest exists with the County Manager in the case 
involving discipline, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will 
seek a qualified County Manager or City Manager from a jurisdiction outside of 
Storey County, preferably a county with reasonably similar staff numbers and 
other organizational characteristics to Storey County, located in the State of 
Nevada, to serve as the appellate. 
The written appeal must state the basis of the appeal and contain a specific 
admission or denial of each of the material statements in the decision. If an 
employee fails to file a written appeal conforming to these requirements within 5 
work days as shown in subsection (1) above, s/he is deemed to have waived the 
right to appeal. (Reference: Section 1.6  Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees 
Pursuant to NRS.) 
After the employee has submitted a timely appeal to the Administrative Officer 
and/or Personnel Director, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director 
will set a date for a disciplinary appeal hearing. At such hearing, the employee will 
have the right to be represented by an attorney or other representative retained by 
the employee, to present evidence and argument in response to the disciplinary 
action, and to question and cross-examine adverse witnesses. The hearing may be 
conducted informally without conforming to the formal rules of evidence and such 
informality of the hearing process shall not invalidate the decision rendered. The 
County Manager will issue to the parties a decision within 5 work days following 
such hearing. The decision of the County Manager is final. 

1.6 Public Hearing for Dismissed Employees Pursuant to NRS 

In accordance with NRS 245.065, when an employee of a county, other than a department head 
or the County Manager, who has been employed by the county for 12 or more months is 
dismissed from employment, the employee may request within 15 days of the date of dismissal a 
written statement specifically setting forth the reasons for the dismissal. Within 15 days of the 
date of the request the employee so dismissed shall be furnished the written statement. Within 30 
days after receipt of the written statement, the dismissed employee may, in writing, request a 
public hearing before the board of county commissioners to determine the reasonableness of the 
action. The board of county commissioners shall grant the dismissed employee a public hearing 
within 15 days after receipt of the written request. At the public hearing, technical rules of 
evidence do not apply. Such dismissed employee is not required to utilize the established pre-
disciplinary conference and appeal process in this policy before requesting a public hearing. 

1.7     Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding 



Page 7 of 7 

By notifying the employee in writing, the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director may 
place an employee (including department heads and the County Manager) on administrative leave, 
with or without pay pending an investigation of alleged misconduct or performance deficiencies, 
prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding, or during the review of the employee’s response to a 
proposed disciplinary action.  The notice of administrative leave will include a statement that the 
leave is not a disciplinary action. An employee placed on administrative leave without pay who is 
later reinstated without disciplinary action being imposed will be reimbursed for any pay and 
benefits lost during the administrative leave. 

1.8     False Accusations 

An employee who has been found to have intentionally filed a false report of wrongdoing may be 
subject to discipline up to and including termination. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Public Hearing on proposed Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761
and 25-762 as described:

• RESOLUTION 25-757 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910100, UNNAMED
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191.  It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• RESOLUTION 25-758 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910320, CEMETERY
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191.  It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• RESOLUTION 25-759 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910325, UNNAMED
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191.  It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• RESOLUTION 25-760 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910470, UNNAMED
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191.  It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• RESOLUTION 25-761 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS    COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 911345, UNNAMED
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED   STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191.  It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• RESOLUTION 25-762 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY
PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 920020, HILLSIDE
RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. It is
proposed that the road be identified as a minor county road.

• The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road,
available for public use but not maintained by Storey County. It must be used by the
public at its own risk.

•
• Please go to the Storey County website to view the packet.

Storeycounty.org/Planning/Planning Updates then Scroll down to RS2477 packet
information for this item.

       11



• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to close the public hearing on the
proposed Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761 and 25-762.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: A public hearing is required to consider public input on proposed
Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761 and 25-762 to consider establishing
minor county roads identified as Storey County Road Numbers 910100, 910320, 910325,
910470, 911345, 920020, as minor county roads per Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170
and 405.191.  See Staff Reports, and Resolutions which included legal descriptions.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-757 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed,
Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall
Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet It is proposed that the road be
identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-757, identifying Storey County Road
Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately eight (8) feet, as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-757, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-757 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       12



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-757 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910100, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management only. 

Location: The road is north of Six Mile Canyon Road and south of the Virginia Ranches 
40-acre subdivision on Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 004-301-16 and 004-
281-80.  The roadway segment is approximately 3,741 linear feet in length
and on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management and on private
property.

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 
use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910100 

This roadway is located north of Six Mile Canyon Road and south of the Virginia Ranches 40-acre 
subdivision.  The roadway segment is location on APNs 004-301-16 which is managed by the Bureau of 
Land Management and on a privately owned parcel, APN 004-281-80.  The Resolution 25-757 establishing 
the segment as a minor county road excludes the portion of the segment on private property.  The road is 
approximately 3,741 feet in length and approximately 8-feet wide.   The effect of identifying the road as a 
minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but that it is not maintained by 
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of the Unnamed Storey County Road Number 910100, 
which includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land 
as a minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of 
the proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

Yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment 

Suggested Motion 

In coordination with the recommendation by staff I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-757, 
identifying Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length 
(in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet 
road as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a 
public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at 
their own risk. 



RESOLUTION 25-757 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910100, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately eight (8) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor Storey County Road Number 

910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed for use 

by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly 

known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) 

Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau 

of Land Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of 

the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as 

more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County Road 

Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with the 

Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 910100, 

commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 

Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 



maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 

schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 910100, 

commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 

Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully described in 

the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description  
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: Unnamed Road 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 910100 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude:  39.333924 N, -119.594989 W 
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 14 
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.325374 N, -119.596209 W 
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 23  

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):3,741’ (0.71
 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately  

eight (8) feet.  

All Projections are  NAD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal Degrees
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation areas, or any combination thereof. 

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity.” 



17N 21E

23 24

14 13

91
04

70

9
20

055

910100

Locator Map
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps,

Date: 9/17/2020

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads
Road in Process

State and County Roads

SIX MILE CANYON RD

SR 341

SR 342

SR 439

USGS Quadrangle Grid

0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15

Miles

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 









17N 21E

1 10/21/1976
BLM

3 10/21/1976
BLM

10 10/21/1976
BLM

NENE 10/21/1976
BLM

SWSW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SESE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NWNE 10/21/1976
BLM

2 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NENW 10/21/1976
BLM

17 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SWNW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWSW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

9 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

4 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

3 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

1 10/21/1976
BLM

5 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

2 10/17/1976
BLM

NESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

GLO Survey 1867

23

14

22

15

24

13

91
01

00
  U

nn
am

e
d 

R
oa

d

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125

Miles

Date: 9/15/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



17N 21E
Flowery Peak 1967

AMS 2062 I SE-SERIES V896

1 10/21/1976
BLM

3 10/21/1976
BLM

10 10/21/1976
BLM

NENE 10/21/1976
BLM

SWSW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SESE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NWNE 10/21/1976
BLM

2 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NENW 10/21/1976
BLM

17 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SWNW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWSW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

9 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

4 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

3 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

1 10/21/1976
BLM

5 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

2 10/17/1976
BLM

NESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

23

14

22

15

24

13

91
01

00
  U

nn
am

e
d 

R
oa

d

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125

Miles

Date: 9/15/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



Road Collections that don’t overlay the track on the Proof Map 

It frequently happens that the course of a road is altered by a washout, foreign obstacle (such 
as a fallen tree or rock), severe rutting or erosion. In cases like this, via the concept of 
‘maintenance by use’, a go around from the original provable course is established. This is 
generally a short detour. 

Occasionally, a road will start in the same close proximity, perhaps follow the provable track for 
a distance, and then divert substantially from the provable course. And then end up at the 
same approximate location served by the provable road. 

In cases like this the provable track is no longer in use. But again the concept of ‘maintenance 
by use’ clearly evidences that the new track is not a new road. It is in effect the same road 
merely located via a more passable track serving the same destination. 

These roads have been processed in the same manner as all other RS2477 qualifying roads. The 
only recognizable distinction is that the proof map clearly shows that there is no pre 1976 track 
underlying the collection. But it does show the starting and ending locations evidencing that it 
does serve the destination of the now unused original track.  

This document is included in the Road Folders of these roads. There is also a comprehensive list 
of such roads by Road # maintained in the Project file. 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-758 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery,
Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average
Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet.  It is proposed that the road be
identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-758, identifying Storey County Road
Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately twelve (12) feet, as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the
road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but
not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-758, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-758 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       13



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-758 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Cemetery, Storey County Road Number 910320, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management. 

Location: The road is located adjacent to Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) and is 
located downhill of Geiger Grade Road to the east across APNs 004-301-16 
and 001-302-02.  The roadway segment is approximately 3,172 linear feet in 
length and approximately 12-feet wide.  The road is on land identified as 
public land.    

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 
use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Cemetery, Storey County Road Number 910320 

This roadway is located downhill and east of Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) just north of the Virginia 
City townsite plat.  The roadway has been known as Cemetery in the past, but is not what is currently 
associated with Cemetery Road and is not within the land area of what is currently considered the 
cemetery for Virginia City.  The road is approximately 3,172 feet in length and approximately 12-feet wide. 
The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for 
public use but that it is not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of the Cemetery Storey County Road Number 910320, 
which includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land 
as a minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of 
the proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

Yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment 

Suggested Motion 

 In coordination with the recommendation by staff,  I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-758, 
identifying Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length 
(in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, 
as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public 
road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their 
own risk. 



RESOLUTION 25-758 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910320, CEMETERY RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately twelve (12) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor Storey County Road Number 

910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed for use 

by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly 

known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall 

Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully described in the attached 

Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau of Land 

Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of the road 

that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, 

as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County Road 

Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with 

the Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 910320, 

commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 

Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 

maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 



schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 910320, 

commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 

Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully described 

in the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description 
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: CEMETERY 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 910320 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude:  39.318105 N, -119.645036 W
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 20
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.324171 N, -119.641413 W
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 20 

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):3,172’ (0.6 Miles)
Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately  

twelve (12) feet.  

All Projections are AD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal DegreesN
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation areas, or any combination thereof. 

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity.” 



SR
 3

41

17N 21E

2019

2930

21

28

910320
91 03 45

910305

91
13

45

91
03

90

910325

911305

Locator Map
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps,

Date: 9/17/2020

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads
Road in Process

State and County Roads
SIX MILE CANYON RD

SR 341

SR 342

SR 439

USGS Quadrangle Grid

    0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15
Miles

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3 rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 













17N 21EVirginia City 1967
AMS2062 I SW-SERIES V896

25 10/21/1976
BLM

20 10/21/1976
BLM

26 10/21/1976
BLM 23 10/17/1976

BLM

29 10/21/1976
BLM

27 10/17/1976
BLM

19 10/21/1976
BLM

28 10/17/1976
BLM

29 10/17/1976
BLM

19 10/17/1976
BLM

4 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

31 10/21/1976
BLM

3 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

30 10/17/1976
BLM

1 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

3 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

18 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

17 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

20

29

21

28

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

    0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
Miles

Date: 9/15/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source : Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-759 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed
Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall
Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet.  It is proposed that the road
be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-759, identifying Storey County Road
Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the
road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but
not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-759, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-759 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

     14



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-759 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910325, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land identified as public land.   

Location: The road is southwest of Seven Mile Canyon, east of Geiger Grade Road and 
north of the Virgina City cemetery site.  The roadway segment is located on 
APN 001-302-02 and 004-301-07, public land managed by Storey County and 
the Bureau of Land Management.    The roadway segment is approximately 
3,042 linear feet in length and has an approximate width of 14-feet.        

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 
use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910325 

This roadway is located southwest of Seven Mile Canyon, east of Geiger Grade Road and north of the 
Virginia City cemetery site.  The roadway segment is location on APNs 004-301-16 which is managed by 
the Bureau of Land Management and on APN 001-302-02, land managed by Storey County.  The road is 
approximately 3,042 feet in length and approximately 14-feet wide.   The effect of identifying the road as a 
minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but that it is not maintained by 
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of the Unnamed Storey County Road Number 910325, 
which includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land 
as a minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of 
the proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

Yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment 

Suggested Motion 

 In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-759, 
identifying Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment 
Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately 
fourteen (14) feet, as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to 
identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by 
motorists at their own risk. 



RESOLUTION 25-759 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910325, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor, Storey County Road Number 

910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more 

fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed 

for use by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly 

known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) 

Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau 

of Land Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of 

the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) 

feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County 

Road Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with 

the Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 910325, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ 

(0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet,   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 



maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 

schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 910325, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ 

(0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description 
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: Unnamed Road 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 910325 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude:  39.320527 N, -119.636864 W
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 21
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.317763 N, -119.642919 W
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 20 

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):3,042’ (0.58
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately  

fourteen (14) feet.  

All Projections are AD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal DegreesN
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation  areas, or any combination thereof.

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned  by any other person or entity.” 



SR
 3

41

17N 21E

20 21

29 28

 17 16

910345

910320

910325

91
03

90

91
13

45

911490

Locator Map
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps,

Date: 9/17/2020

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads
Road in Process

State and County Roads
SIX MILE CANYON RD

SR 341

SR 342

SR 439

USGS Quadrangle Grid

    0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15
Miles

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3 rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 













17N 21E

Virginia City 1967
AMS2062 I SW-SERIES V896

29 10/21/1976
BLM

23 10/17/1976
BLM 29 10/17/1976

BLM

31 10/21/1976
BLM

30 10/17/1976
BLM

1 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

15 10/21/1976
BLM

21 10/21/1976
BLM

19 10/21/1976
BLM

18 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

17 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

2120

29 28

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

    0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.075
Miles

Date: 9/16/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source : Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-760 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed
Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall
Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, It is proposed that the road be
identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-760, identifying Storey County Road
Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately eight (8) feet as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road
as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not
maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-760, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-760 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

        15



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-760 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910470, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land identified as public land.   

Location: The road is located north of Six Mile Canyon Road and south of the Virginia 
Ranches 40-acre subdivision.  The roadway segment is located on APN 004-
301-07 on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management.    The roadway
segment is approximately 5,744 linear feet in length and has an approximate
width of 8-feet.

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 
use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 910470 

This roadway is located north of Six Mile Canyon Road and south of Virginia Ranches 40 acres subdivision.  
The roadway segment is location on APNs 004-301-16 which is managed by the Bureau of Land 
Management.  The road is approximately 5,744 feet in length and approximately 8-feet wide.   The effect 
of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but 
that it is not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of the Unnamed Storey County Road Number 910470, 
which includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land 
as a minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of 
the proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

Yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment 

Suggested Motion 

In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-760, 
identifying Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment 
Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight 
(8) feet as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a
public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at
their own risk.



RESOLUTION 25-760 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910470, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately eight (8) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor Storey County Road Number 

910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed for use 

by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly 

known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) 

Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau 

of Land Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of 

the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as 

more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County Road 

Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with the 

Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 910470, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ 

(1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet,   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 



maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 

schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 910470, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ 

(1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately eight (8) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description 
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: Unnamed Road 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 910470 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude:  39.31708 N, -119.581896 W
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 24
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.331451 N, -119.580095 W
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 24 

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):5,744’ (1.09
Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately  

eight (8) feet.  

All Projections are AD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal DegreesN
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation areas, or any combination thereof. 

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity.” 



17N 21E 17N 22E
2423

25

13

19

26

14

30

18

91
04

70

9200 55

Locator Map
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps,

Date: 9/17/2020

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads
Road in Process

State and County Roads
SIX MILE CANYON RD

SR 341

SR 342

SR 439

USGS Quadrangle Grid

    0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15
Miles

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3 rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 









17N 21E
17N 22EFlowery Peak 1967

AMS 2062 I SE-SERIES V896

1 10/21/1976
BLM

1 10/21/1976
BLM

NENE 8/31/1872
462

NENE 10/21/1976
BLM

SESE 10/21/1976
BLM

SENE 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

2 10/17/1976
BLM

NENE 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNE 8/31/1872
462

NENE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NENW 8/31/1872
461

SESW 10/21/1976
BLM

SWSE 10/21/1976
BLM

SENW 10/21/1976
BLM

SWNE 10/21/1976
BLM

NESW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWSE 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNE 10/21/1976
BLM

NENW 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNE 10/21/1976
BLM

NWNE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

2 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

NENW 10/21/1976
BLM

NENW 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SWSW 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SESE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

SESW 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SWSE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

8 10/21/1976
BLM

1 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

9 10/21/1976
BLM

7 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

SESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

3 10/17/1976
BLM

3 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

5 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

4 10/21/1976
BLM

NESE 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR6 3/15/1875

Central Pacific RRNWSE 10/21/1976
BLM

NESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NESE 10/21/1976
BLM

24

23

25

13
14

26

19

30

18

91
04

70
  U

nn
am

ed
 R

oa
d

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend
Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

    0 0.35 0.7 1.05 1.40.175
Miles

Date: 9/16/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source : Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-761 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed
Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall
Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet.  It is proposed that the road
be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-761, identifying Storey County Road
Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately twelve (12) feet,

• as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to
identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.
It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-761, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-761 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       16



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-761 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 911345, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land identified as public land.   

Location: The road is located east of Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) and north of the 
Virginia City cemetery site.  The roadway segment is located on APN 004-301-
07 on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management.    The roadway 
segment is approximately 1,745 linear feet in length and has an approximate 
width of 12-feet.        

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 
use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Unnamed, Storey County Road Number 911345 

This roadway is located east of Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) and north of the Virginia City cemetery 
site.  The roadway segment is location on APNs 004-301-16 which is managed by the Bureau of Land 
Management.  The road is approximately 1,745 feet in length and approximately 12-feet wide.   The effect 
of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but 
that it is not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of the Unnamed Storey County Road Number 911345, 
which includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land 
as a minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of 
the proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

Yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment 

Suggested Motion 

 In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-761, 
identifying Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length 
(in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet 
road as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a 
public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at 
their own risk. 



RESOLUTION 25-761 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 911345, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately twelve (12) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor Storey County Road Number 

911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed for use 

by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly 

known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) 

Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau 

of Land Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of 

the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, 

as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County Road 

Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with 

the Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 911345, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ 

(0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 



maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 

schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 911345, 

commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ 

(0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately twelve (12) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description 
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: Unnamed Road 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 911345 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude: 39.320698 N, -119.642041 W 
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 20 
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.324447 N, -119.640037 W 
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 20 

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) 
Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately 

twelve (12) feet. 

All Projections are NAD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal Degrees 
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation areas, or any combination thereof. 

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity.” 



Locator Map 
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps, 

19 20 21 

17N 21E 

30 29 28 

0 0.15 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.2 

Miles 

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere 

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and 
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 

Date: 9/17/2020 

Legend 

Subject Road 

RS2477 Roads 

Road in Process 

State and County Roads 

SIX MILE CANYON RD 

SR 341 

SR 342 

SR 439 

USGS Quadrangle Grid 







Proof Map 
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps, 

GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 

various State and NDOT transportation maps 

17 10/21/1976 

BLM 

18 10/21/1976 
BLM 

17 10/21/1976 
BLM 

20 10/21/1976 
BLM 

19 10/17/1976 

BLM 

20 10/21/1976 
BLM 

21 10/17/1976 

BLM 

25 10/21/1976 

BLM 

20 21 

17N 21E 

Virginia City 1967 
AMS2062 I SW-SERIES V896 

23 10/17/1976 
BLM 29 10/17/1976 

BLM 

28 10/17/1976 
BLM 

29 10/21/1976 

BLM 
31 10/21/1976 

BLM 

30 10/17/1976 18 3/15/1875 
BLM 

29 1 3/15/1875 
Central Pacific RR 

Central Pacific RR 
17 3/15/1875 

Central Pacific RR 28 

0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 

Miles 

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere 

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and 
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps. 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 

Date: 9/16/2020 

Legend 

Subject Road 

RS2477 Roads Project 

Roads in Process 

Township/Range Label 

Date of Transfer from Public 

Land Ownership Status 

Bureau of Indian Affairs 

Bureau of Land Management 

Bureau of Reclamation 

Private Ownership 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-762 proposing the
identification of Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd,
Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall
Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet.  It is proposed that the road
be identified as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county
road is to identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by
Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Recommended motion: In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I
(commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-762, identifying Storey County Road
Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in
Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
Approximately fourteen (14) feet

• as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to
identify it as a public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.
It must be used by motorists at their own risk.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: Following a public hearing on proposed Resolution 25-762, this request
is to adopt Resolution 25-762 as a minor county public road per Nevada Revised Statutes
403.170 and 405.191.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

        17



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



1 

To: Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

Request: RESOLUTION 25-762 establishing a minor county public road identified as 
Hillside, Storey County Road Number 920020, pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes 403.170 and 405.191.   This request is to establish the minor county 
road on land identified as public land.   

Location: The road is located east of Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) between the 
Virginia City townsite and the Virginia Ranches 40 acre subdivision.  The 
portion of the roadway segment proposed to be established is located on APN 
004-301-07 on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management.    The
overall roadway segment is approximately 3,233 linear feet in length and has
an approximate width of 14-feet.

Background & Analysis 

Storey County has commenced the process of identifying existing public access roadways located on public 
land.  Nevada Revised Statues Section 405.191 identifies what is considered a public road.  Storey County is 
following this definition to designate roadways that meet the following:  

Any way which exists upon a right-of-way granted by Congress over public lands of the United States 
not reserved for public uses in chapter 262, section 8, 14 Statutes 253 (former 43 U.S.C. § 932, 
commonly referred to as R.S. 2477), and accepted by general public use and enjoyment before, on 
or after July 1, 1979. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, each board of county 
commissioners may locate and determine the width of such rights-of-way and locate, open for 
public use and establish thereon county roads or highways, but public use alone has been and is 
sufficient to evidence an acceptance of the grant of a public user right-of-way pursuant to former 43 
U.S.C. § 932. In a county in which a board of county highway commissioners has exclusive control of 
all matters relating to the construction, repairing and maintaining of public highways, roads and 
bridges within the county pursuant to NRS 403.090, the board of county highway commissioners 
may locate and determine the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public 

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.090
mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

use for the purpose of designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170 or taking any other action 
concerning those rights-of-way pursuant to chapter 403 of NRS. 

Storey County entered into a contract with Mr. Jerry Elkins to do the research on various roadway sections 
located within Storey County that had not previously been researched by Storey County or identified as a 
county-recognized road.  Utilizing this research, Storey County is recognizing each roadway segment that 
meets the NRS Section 405.191 definition on public property.  The research, map, legal description and 
photographs are included for each roadway segment and a Resolution recognizing the roadway segment by 
the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners is generated for each segment.   

Upon recordation of the Resolution, each segment of roadway will be added to the overall Storey County 
map of county roads and designated as a minor county road.  The map will then be presented to the State of 
Nevada Department of Transportation as identified in NRS Section 403.190. 

It should be noted that NRS 403.170(1)(c) states that county roads designated as minor county roads do not 
have to be maintained and it further provides that the state and county are immune from liability for 
damages suffered by anyone using a minor county road.  The statute also does not require signage to create 
the immunity from liability. 

County staff are proceeding with recognizing the roadways that are located on publicly owned land only.  
Some of the research does include other roadway areas, including areas privately owned.  If the need arises 
in the future, this research is anticipated to be utilized in the legal process of identifying public access across 
private property. 

The applicable NRS sections identified in this report are attached as exhibits to this staff report. 

Hillside, Storey County Road Number 920020 

This roadway is located east of Geiger Grade Road (Highway 341) and north of the Virginia City cemetery 
site.  The roadway segment is location on APNs 004-301-16 which is managed by the Bureau of Land 
Management.  The overall road segment is approximately 3,233 feet in length and approximately 14-feet 
wide.   The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as a public road, available 
for public use but that it is not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at their own 
risk. 

The overall roadway segment is located on both public and private land.  The area on private land is not 
being established as a minor county road at this time.  The proposed Resolution excludes land located on 
private property. 

Attached to this staff report is a legal description of Hillside, Storey County Road Number 920020, which 
includes maps and photographs of the roadway.  A Resolution establishing the roadway on public land as a 
minor public road is also attached for consideration for adoption.  Staff is recommending approval of the 
proposed Resolution. 

https://nevada.public.law/statutes/nrs_403.170
https://nevada.public.law/NRS/NRS-403.html#NRS403


3 

The yellow line indicates approximate location of the roadway segment on public land.  The green line and 
the yellow line together are the approximate total length of the roadway segment.  The line depicted in 
green is on private property and is excluded from establishment per the proposed Resolution. 

Suggested Motion 

 In coordination with the recommendation by staff, I (commissioner) move to adopt Resolution 25-762, 



4 

identifying Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside, Total Road Segment Length 
(in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) 
feet road as a minor county road.  The effect of identifying the road as a minor county road is to identify it as 
a public road, available for public use but not maintained by Storey County.  It must be used by motorists at 
their own risk. 



RESOLUTION 25-762 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS 
COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 920020, HILLSIDE RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVISED 
STATUTES 403.170 and 405.191. 

WHEREAS, in response to the urging of the Nevada Legislature in Senate Concurrent 

Resolution No. 6, in the 75th Legislative Session of 2009, the Storey County Board of 

Commissioners (Board) on February 18, 2020, approved of a project to inventory and map all 

roads or rights-of-way that qualify to be classified as minor county roads under Nevada law and 

which were granted for public use under what was formerly codified as section 2477 of the 

Revised Statutes of the United States, 43 U.S.C. § 932 (R.S. 2477), and which were expressly 

recognized and preserved when R.S. 2477 was repealed under the enactment of the Federal Land 

Policy and Management Act of 1976, (See § 701(a)); and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 405.191 is empowered to locate and determine 

the width of those rights-of-way and open those rights-of-way for public use for the purpose of 

designating county roads pursuant to NRS 403.170; and 

WHEREAS, the Board pursuant to NRS 403.170 is tasked with laying out and designating 

roads which are neither main nor general county roads but have been established by usage, or were 

constructed for use by the public, and shall designate these roads as minor county roads; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the documents attached as Exhibit 1 and concludes that 

the roads or rights-of-way depicted therein qualify to be designated as minor county roads and open 

to the public; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 403.170 a public hearing was held on March 4, 2025 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby locate, open for public use, layout and designate the public county road 

right-of-way Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as a minor county road; 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine and declare that the minor Storey County Road Number 

920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 

3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more 

fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, has been: (a) established by usage or (b) was constructed 

for use by the public and prior to the October 21, 1976 repeal of R.S. 2477; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners 

does hereby acknowledge and determine that Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly 

known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) 

Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, applies only to the segments of the road that traverse land managed by the Bureau 

of Land Management, United States Department of the Interior, and does not apply to segments of 

the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the minor Storey County Road 

Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal 

Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) 

feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be represented on the Storey County 

Road Inventory as a minor road; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, and hereby ordered that the Exhibit 1, designating county 

minor road, Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road 

Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: 

Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully described in the attached Exhibit 1, shall be filed with 

the Clerk of the Storey County Board of Highway Commissioners, the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, and the County Recorder; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.190, does hereby declare the filing of 

Exhibit 1 is evidence of the existence and location of Storey County Road Number 920020, 

commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 

Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 403.170 does hereby determine that no 



maintenance is required on minor county roads and there will be no change in the maintenance 

schedule by the Storey County Public Works Department until and at such time it is determined to be 

necessary; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Storey County Board of Highway 

Commissioners does hereby determine that signs indicating the road number, lack of maintenance, 

common name or any other informational message deemed appropriate by the Storey County Public 

Works Department may be placed on the county minor road, Storey County Road Number 920020, 

commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ 

(0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately fourteen (14) feet, as more fully 

described in the attached Exhibit 1. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2025. 

THOSE VOTING AYE: 

THOSE VOTING NAY: 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
HIGHWAY COMMISSIONERS 

By: Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 



Beginning and Ending Points and Legal Description  
The road is the monument. 

Common Name: HILLSIDE 
County: Storey 

County Road Number: 920020 

Beginning Latitude/Longitude:  39.336861 N, -119.639856 W 
Beginning Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 17 
Ending Latitude/Longitude: 39.328755 N,-119.636055 W 
Ending Legal Description: Township 17 N, Range 21 East, Within Section 21  

Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance):3,233’ (0.61 Miles) 
Overall Average Disturbed Width: Approximately  

fourteen (14) feet.  

All Projections are NAD 1983 StatePlane Nevada West FIPS 2702 Feet in Decimal Degrees
The collected centerline report for this road is in a database maintained by the Storey County GIS 
Outsource Contractor. 

This road provides access to other roads, private property, water rights, and mining claims or to hunting, 
fishing, firewood, wildlife viewing, camping, hiking, motor vehicle recreation, mineral exploration or 
other general outdoor recreation areas, or any combination thereof. 

“The RS 2477 assertion is to the segments of the road that traverse land reserved and managed by the 
Bureau of Land Management and US Forest Service, United States Department of the Interior and 
segments of the road that traverse land owned by any other person or entity.” 



S
R

 341

17N 21E

17 16

20 21

920020

91
04

05

910
345

91
03

90

920025

910395

91
0320

9113
45

Locator Map
Excerpt from current USGS Topographical maps,

Date: 9/17/2020

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads
Road in Process

State and County Roads

SIX MILE CANYON RD

SR 341

SR 342

SR 439

USGS Quadrangle Grid

0 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.20.15

Miles

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 









17N 21E

18 10/21/1976
BLM

17 10/21/1976
BLM

SESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

NESW 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

10 10/21/1976
BLM

NWSW 2/9/1874
701

9 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR

15 10/21/1976
BLM

16 3/15/1875
Central Pacific RR17 3/15/1875

Central Pacific RR
SWSE 9/30/1957

NVN0043294FD01

19 10/17/1976
BLM

NWSE 9/30/1957
NVN0043294FD01

16 10/17/1976
BLM

SWSW 2/9/1874
701

22 10/17/1976
BLM21 10/17/1976

BLM

20 10/21/1976
BLM

16 10/17/1976
BLM

GLO Survey 1867

16

21

17

20

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Date of Transfer from Public

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1

Miles

Date: 9/16/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



17N 21E
Virginia City 1967

AMS2062 I SW-SERIES V896

16

21

17

20

Proof Map
Excerpt from historic maps: USGS Topographical maps,
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps,

various State and NDOT transportation maps

Legend

Subject Road

RS2477 Roads Project
Roads in Process

Township/Range Label

Land Ownership Status
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Bureau of Land Management

Bureau of Reclamation

Private Ownership

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1

Miles

Date: 9/16/2020

Coordinate System: WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere

Map Source: Central Nevada GIS and  
Cartography Services, LLC. (CNGIS) 
Jerry Elkins 775-761-7777 
Data Source: Base Map – USGS Topographical maps, 
GLO Survey maps, BLM Surface Management maps, 
various historic State and NDOT Transportation 
maps.  
State and Local County Roads – supplied by Storey 
County’s contracted 3rd party GIS provider. 
RS2477 Roads – Digitally collected by CNGIS 



Road Collections that don’t overlay the track on the Proof Map 

It frequently happens that the course of a road is altered by a washout, foreign obstacle (such 
as a fallen tree or rock), severe rutting or erosion. In cases like this, via the concept of 
‘maintenance by use’, a go around from the original provable course is established. This is 
generally a short detour. 

Occasionally, a road will start in the same close proximity, perhaps follow the provable track for 
a distance, and then divert substantially from the provable course. And then end up at the 
same approximate location served by the provable road. 

In cases like this the provable track is no longer in use. But again the concept of ‘maintenance 
by use’ clearly evidences that the new track is not a new road. It is in effect the same road 
merely located via a more passable track serving the same destination. 

These roads have been processed in the same manner as all other RS2477 qualifying roads. The 
only recognizable distinction is that the proof map clearly shows that there is no pre 1976 track 
underlying the collection. But it does show the starting and ending locations evidencing that it 
does serve the destination of the now unused original track.  

This document is included in the Road Folders of these roads. There is also a comprehensive list 
of such roads by Road # maintained in the Project file. 



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout
Storey County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion only.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and highways throughout the county.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       18



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Special Use Permit 2025-014.  The
applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment.  The outdoor
venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include a variety of scheduled uses
and special events.  The property is located at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of
fact under Section 3.A of this report and as read into the record by county staff and other
findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance
with the conditions of approval, I (commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use
Permit 2025-014 to operate an outdoor establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated
with the Silverland Inn and will include a variety of scheduled uses and special events.
The property is located at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: See Staff Report.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

        20



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County 
Planning Department 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 

Phone 775-847-1144 – Fax 775-847-0949 
planning@storeycounty.org 

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners 

From:  Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date:  March 4, 2025 

Meeting Location: 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

File:  2025-014 

Applicants: Carol Maley, Zachary Maley 

Property Owner: Virginia City Hotel, LLC, (dba Silverland Inn)  

Property Location: 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 001-152-04, 001-
154-03 and 001-151-02

Request: The applicant requests a Special Use Permit 2025-014 to operate an outdoor 
establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will 
include a variety of scheduled uses and special events.  The property is located 
at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-
152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

Planning Commission:  The Planning Commission heard this request at their February 20, 2025, 
meeting.  A discussion of the project occurred and the applicant answered 
questions about potential special events and the vision she has for the use of 
the property.  Staff proposed some small edits to the recommended conditions 
of approval.  Todd Tuttle, VCTC Director, spoke about special events and was 
supportive of the project.  Prior to the meeting, a residential neighbor to the 
south of the property contacted the Planning Department to express support 
for the project.  The Planning Commission voted to accept the edits to Special 
Conditions F, N and R, and to strike the words “but not limited to” on Exhibit A 
under Proposed Event Types and recommended approval of the project with a 
6-0 vote (1 absent).  The recommended conditions of approval and Exhibit A of
this staff report reflect the edits.



2 

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics:  The property is located at 100 N. E Street in Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada.   The property is zoned CR – Commercial Residential and is
developed on the northwestern portion of the property with a hotel and associated
parking lot.  Access to this portion of the development is from E Street.  The applicant
has proposed to host outdoor special events and uses at the hotel property and on the
adjacent land owned by the applicant.

This property is unique to Virginia City as it has plenty of excess parking area beyond
that required to service the hotel and the parcel has open space that is relatively level
which affords opportunities to utilize this outside area for other uses.  Most commercial
properties within Virginia City are small in size and have topography that doesn’t allow
for much outdoor usable space.
At this time, the special use permit is addressing the land associated with APNs 001-152-
04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02 only, depicted below in the yellow outline.  The
applicant does own other properties to the east of these parcels, but these additional
properties will be addressed at a future date.  The area to the east previously was used
by Storey County as a fairgrounds prior to moving to the new location.

Location map 



3 

Assessor’s Parcel Map 

View of the property looking north from the corner of Union and E Streets 

View of the property from E Street looking north, VC Freight Depot is on the left, Silverland Inn on 
the right. 



4 

View looking southeast, Silverland Inn on the left, Comstock History Center on the right. 

B. Proposed Uses:  The applicant has provided a list of possible uses that may occur in the
outdoor area of the properties.  Many of these types of uses are similar to uses that the
Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC) hosts to assist local businesses with special
events to attract tourism to the vicinity.  The applicant proposes to develop their own
special events to bring visitors to their property and the town in general.

Exhibit A of this staff report has a list of potential special events the property owner may
desire to have occur at the site.  In coming up with the list, the property owner was
brainstorming anything they think might be feasible to include in the special use permit.
Many of these uses may not occur regularly or concurrently or maybe not at all, but are
listed to give an idea of the types of activities that might be pursued.

It should be noted that this special use permit addresses land uses that will be
permissible not the physical development of the special event features.  Many of the
listed special events may also require building and fire code review and additional
permitting may be necessary based on the individual event.  For example, a wedding
may desire an extremely large tent structure or a concert may desire installation of a
stage.  Although permissible by the special use permit and temporary in nature, a
permit may be required depending on the design and size of the feature.  Layout of
facilities may also be a concern to the Fire District to make sure all features are
accessible in case of an emergency.  This special use permit has identified special event
uses and the recommended conditions of approval have listed the parameters these
uses must conform to be consistent with special use permit.   Any additional permitting
requirements would occur at the time a special event is proposed.

C. Special Events:  The special use permit addresses special events for the property.
Special events are temporary and are not a permanent feature for the property.  Special
events have a beginning date and an end date.  In most cases based on the list of events
in Exhibit A, the special event may be for a day, a few days or a weekend event.  Some
uses by the nature of the use may last longer, such as an ice skating rink for the winter
months, a pumpkin patch in the fall or a tree lot in December.

There are some uses that have a concern with the timing and “permanence” at the site.
Food trucks, camping and retail sales as special events are particularly a concern with
the length of stay at the property.  These types of uses are permissible when associated
with a particular event, but the long term presence at the site requires a different type



5 

of permitting.  For example, a food truck associated with an event occurring onsite, or 
during a weekend event, may be appropriate, but the presence of a food truck at the 
site for the entire summer is a different land use.  Camping is similar.  Allowing for 
camping for a specific event may be appropriate, but the presence of camping at any 
extended length of time evolves into a campground use and different review and needs 
for the site.  As listed in the recommended condition of approvals, the parameters for 
these types of uses are identified.   

D. Zoning Code.   The project is located within CR Commercial Residential zoning district of
Virginia City.  The parcels adjacent to E Street (APN 001-152-04 and 001-151-02) are
within the Downtown District of Virginia City and APN 001-154-03 is accessed from F
Street and is located outside of the Downtown District.  The Chapter 17.30 CR zoning
lists seasonal holiday sales and farmers markets as allowed outdoor uses and open-air
markets, outdoor venues and display and sale of items outside of a building as a special
use.  In addition,  Chapter 17.12.100 (General Provisions for all zones) Section C states



6 

the following:

The applicant proposes to host a variety of outdoor special events activities.  All 
activities shall take place on private property.  Parking spaces associated with the needs 
for the onsite hotel will be retained onsite so parking for the existing land use will 
remain during the special event activities.   These proposed uses, and similar uses, are 
consistent and appear appropriate with the Commercial Residential zoning for the 
zoning district and the Downtown District of Virginia City.   

This property is unique to Virginia City in that it is fairly large with a level area.  The 
property is located two blocks east of C Street and is within walking distance for 
residents and tourists that have no issues with the Virginia City slopes.  There are a 
limited number of parcels where such an outdoor venue could be contemplated.  
Although the Virginia City Tourism Commission (VCTC) does host some similar type 
events, many of these special events would be separate from the VCTC programs. 



7 

Planning staff is of the opinion this is a positive contribution to the Virginia City area.  
The applicant is a participant in VCTC sponsored events when appropriate but is also 
independently proposing events to assist themselves with business development.  
Reliance on the VCTC, or any group in general, should not be a singular business 
strategy, and the applicant has developed concepts to implement that will address their 
business along with providing a benefit to the community at large by attracting tourism 
to the area.   

E. Special Use Permit.  A Special Use Permit is required because of the outdoor venue and
nature of the proposed operation in the CR zoning.  Section 17.03.150 of the Storey
County Code identifies the process for Special Use Permits.  The applicant and this
report follow the requirements outlined in the Code.

2. Use Compatibility and Compliance

A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones.  The following table documents land
uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project.  There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and
Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2024 Master Plan.  The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.  The residential
neighborhood of Virginia City begins south across Union Street from the project area.

B. General use allowances and restrictions.  Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit.  The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location.  The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed use will be an outdoor venue which is permitted with a Special
Use Permit for the Commercial Residential zone.  The proposed business will



8 

include a variety of scheduled special events and outdoor activities along with 
maintaining the existing hotel on the property.  The majority of the outdoor 
venue will be located within the Downtown District of Virginia City and proposes 
activities for local residents and tourists which the master plan encourages for a 
wide range uses within a single community.   

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed activity will be an outdoor venue, located adjacent to commercial
and tourist uses and will provide a variety of outdoor activities both for tourists
and residents.  All activities will occur on private property.  No activities will
occur within the public right-of-way unless separate authorization from Storey
County is acquired for a particular special event.  The residential neighborhood
begins to the south across Union Street.  As a recommended condition of
approval, the special use permit will require activities of a special event that
generate noise and lighting be located near the center and north of the project
area, away from the residential neighborhood to the greatest extent possible.

(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

As conditioned, the proposed activities will take place on private property.  The
majority of the proposed area is located within the Downtown District of
Virginia City where commercial and tourist events are meant to take place.
The outdoor venue use will compliment the downtown Virginia City and provide
activities for both local residents and tourists.  The applicant will be required to
comply with the Storey County Code associated with noise and lighting for the
site along with individual building permits and business licensing, depending on
the event.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing facilities.  As conditioned, depending on the needs of
the special event, such items including, but not limited to, private security, trash



9 

collection and restroom facilities will be part of the overall operations of the 
special event and not rely on county services unless such services are negotiated 
with the county prior to the event. 

C. Conformance with the 2024 Storey County Master Plan.  The property is located In
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and is zoned Commercial-Residential and the
majority of the property is within the Downtown District.   The property is zoned
Commercial-Residential

The Storey County Master Plan identifies the following goals:

• Enhance and diversify the local economy by promoting commercial business in
Gold Hill, Virginia City, and the Divide that service the specific interests and
needs of tourists and local residents.

• Continue to enhance diversification of economic opportunities with the county.
• Design zoning districts to allow for a mix in land use development.

The proposed outdoor special events venue and the property location are consistent 
with these master plan goals.     

3. Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval.  The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the
requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2025-014 to operate an outdoor
establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will
include a variety of scheduled uses and special events.  The property is located
at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-
152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02

(2) The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice
by the county.

(3) As conditioned, the proposal location, size, height, operations, and other
significant features will be compatible with and will not cause substantial
negative impact on adjacent land uses or will perform a function or provide a
service that is essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and
neighborhood.

(4) As conditioned, the proposed project is not expected to result in no substantial
or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the character of the
neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites or
right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a



10 

result of the implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master 
plan, this title, and any other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or 
under consideration pursuant to an official notice, by the county, or other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development. 

(5) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(6) The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2024 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City planning area in which the subject property is located.  A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

(7) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR – Commercial Residential Zone.

B. Motion for denial.  Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2025-014 to operate an outdoor
establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will
include a variety of scheduled uses and special events.  The property is located
at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-
152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.30, CR – Commercial Residential Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

4. Recommended Conditions of Approval

A. Special Use Permit Special Use Permit 2025-014 is to operate an outdoor establishment.
The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include a variety of
scheduled uses and special events.  The property is located at 100 N. E Street, Virginia
City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

B. Business Operations.  This special use permit authorizes the use of an outdoor venue
for scheduled activities such as farmer’s markets, craft fairs, music and dancing,
wedding events and other similar activities as listed in Exhibit A of this staff report.
These items are identified as a temporary event and shall operate as such.  All special



11 

events shall have a starting and ending date.  Parking for the existing hotel use shall 
remain onsite and available during any special event. 

C. Requirements. The Applicant shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including
any applicable building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date
of final approval of this SUP, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This Special Use Permit shall
remain valid as long as the Applicant remains in compliance with the terms of this
Special Use Permit and Storey County, State of Nevada, and federal regulations. No
activity shall commence prior to the Applicant securing rights to the Special Use Permit.

D. Compliance.  The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans and reports, as approved.

E. Special Event Site Layout – Fire District.  The proposed layout of outdoor temporary
structures and parking shall be reviewed by the Storey County Fire Protection District to
ensure access for emergency situations complies with the needs of the Fire District.

F. Special Event Site Layout - Placement.  Special events which generate noise and
excessive lighting requirements shall be located to the greatest extent possible away
from the residential structures across Union Street to the south of the project area.  A
minimum 100-foot setback from Union Street is required for any facilities that generate
noise.

G. Indemnification/Insurance.  The Applicant warrants that the use of land will conform
to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Applicant warrants that continued and
future use of the land shall so conform. The Applicant and Property Owner agree to hold
Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs associated with
any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a
result of this Special Use Permit.

H. Transfer of Rights.  This Special Use Permit (SUP 2025-014) is non-transferable.  This
Special Use Permit applies to the Applicant’s business listed in this permit.

I. Operation Location.  The business shall operate on private property only.  No business,
or solicitation of business, shall be located or conducted in the public right-of-way
unless prior approval from Storey County is obtained.

J. Noise Restrictions.   All noise generated at the site shall be in conformance with Chapter
8.04, Noise Control, of the Storey County Code.   Noise-generating activities shall
operate only between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

K. Lighting.  All exterior lighting shall be in compliance with Chapter 8.02 Outdoor Lighting,
of the Storey County Code.  Any proposed lighting (temporary for the event or
permanently installed) shall be directed downward and shielded from projecting outside
of the project area.



12 

L. Signs.  All signs shall be consistent with Chapter 17.84 of the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance.

M. Permits.  A separate permit(s) is required for any construction on the property.  All
construction and proposed development shall be in compliance with the adopted Storey
County building and fire codes.

N. Camping, Food Trucks, Food and Retail Sales.  All camping, food trucks and food and
retail sales shall be temporary in use and be associated with a special event activity and
shall not operate on the site for a length of stay beyond the associated special event
activity.  Operation of a food truck, food and retail sales and camping (RV, trailer or tent)
on the site without being associated with an actively occurring special event is not
permitted with this approval.

O. Business Licensing.  All business operations on the site, including special events, shall
comply with Storey County business licensing requirements.

P. Trash.  Removal of trash generated onsite, and any overflow trash that may make its
way to the immediately adjacent public rights of way, is the responsibility of the
applicant/special event to clean up and remove to the appropriate facility.

Q. Security.  Any security necessitated by a special event shall be the responsibility of the
applicant/special event.

R. Restroom facilities.  Restroom facilities for a special event shall be provided by the
applicant/special event in accordance with the standards of the Portable Sanitation
Association International.

S. Fire Protection District.  All events involving onsite cooking or open flame will be
subject to inspection by the Fire District to ensure compliance with all applicable fire
and life safety codes.  Event organizers must coordinate with the Fire District in advance
to facilitate this process.

T. Exhibit A.  This permit shall follow the submitted uses and description of operations as
indicated in Exhibit A of this staff report.

5. Public Comment

The Planning Department received a phone message from an adjacent property owner south of
the proposed project in support of the project.  Todd Tuttle, VCTC Director, with a few questions
answered, offered support for the project at the Planning Commission meeting.  No other public
comment was provided.



13 

6. Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

7. Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose.  The motion for approval is
recommended by the Planning Commission and staff in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report.  Those findings should be made part of the approval motion.  A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B.  Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.A
of this report and as read into the record by county staff and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the
conditions of approval, I (commissioner), recommend approval of Special Use Permit
2025-014 to operate an outdoor establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with
the Silverland Inn and will include a variety of scheduled uses and special events.  The
property is located at 100 N. E Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-03 and 001-151-02.

B. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff, but in accordance with the findings of fact under
Section 3.2 of this report and read into the record by county staff and other findings
deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, I (commissioner),
recommend denial of Special Use Permit 2025-014 to operate an outdoor
establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include
a variety of scheduled uses and special events.  The property is located at 100 N. E
Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-152-04, 001-154-03
and 001-151-02.



14 

Exhibit A 



15 



16 



17 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 20

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Presentation and discussion featuring Storey County Public Relations & Social
Media Metrics Update (August 2024 – January 2025).

• Recommended motion: No motion required at this time. This is a discussion-only item
to provide an update on Storey County’s Public Relations and Social Media metrics from
August 2024 through January 2025.

• Prepared by: Julia Moreno-Fritz

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: This agenda item provides a comprehensive update on Storey County’s
Public Relations and Social Media activities from August 2024 to January 2025. The
report will cover several key areas, starting with media outreach and press releases,
where we will discuss the number of press releases distributed and media coverage
achieved. We will also review the social media metrics, including demographics,
engagement, reach, impressions, and top-performing posts across platforms.
Additionally, the update will include an overview of any paid media campaigns.  The
report will also review website traffic, user engagement, and key updates made to the
website during this period. Finally, we will discuss next steps and recommendations for
upcoming initiatives and strategies to enhance communication efforts.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

        21



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County 
Metrics & 

Media Update 
2025 

P R E P A R E D  B Y :

J U L I A  M O R E N O - F R I T Z

















A group of people posing for a photo

AI-generated content may be incorrect.

https://www.facebook.com/StoreyCounty/posts/pfbid02wo6FUU7VuKctXLti9WoPXYQFBJm5vvYB3AcrcYeryu9QbGLRhezZeyBfoMmuUQDVl








• Banner ad: 12,000 impressions

















Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval directing the Comptroller to notify the
Nevada Department of Taxation of the property tax rate the Storey County Board of
Commissioners propose to levy for fiscal year 2025-2026.

• Recommended motion: I Commissioner _________, approve the Comptroller to inform
Nevada Department of Taxation that the Storey County Board of Commissioner's
propose to levy a property tax rate of ______ in fiscal year 2025-2026.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Per the Nevada Department of Taxation, local governments must notify
Nevada Department of Taxation in writing, regarding the proposed tax rate for the
coming fiscal year. If no response is received the FY24-25 rates will apply. There are two
attached letters; the first informing Nevada Department of Taxation of Storey County’s
intent to levy the current tax rate of 3.4607%. The second is informing Nevada
Department of Taxation that Storey County intends to change the rate to _______ (to be
decided today).

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

        22



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



STOREY COUNTY COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
Storey County Courthouse 

10 South “B” Street
P.O. Box 432 Virginia City, Nevada  89440
Phone (775) 847-1133  Fax (775) 847-1151

February 24, 2025

Department of Taxation
Local Government Finance
Attn: Lynn Lukacs
3850 Arrowhead Drive
Carson City, Nevada 89706

Dear Ms. Lukacs,

This letter serves as notification that Storey County proposes to levy the same property tax rate 
(3.4607%) for fiscal year 2025-2026 as was used in fiscal year 2024-2025. 

If you have any questions or comments, please call me at (775)847-1133 or Email me at 
jmccain@storeycounty.org.

Best Regards, 

Jennifer McCain
Comptroller
Storey County, Nevada

mailto:jmccain@storeycounty.org


STOREY COUNTY COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
Storey County Courthouse 

10 South “B” Street
P.O. Box 432 Virginia City, Nevada  89440
Phone (775) 847-1133   Fax (775) 847-1151

February 24, 2025

Department of Taxation
Local Government Finance
Attn: Lynn Lukacs
3850 Arrowhead Drive
Carson City, Nevada 89706

Dear Ms. Lukacs,

This letter serves as notification that Storey County proposes to change the property tax rate 
from 3.4607% to ______ for fiscal year 2025-2026. This change will only affect the General 
portion of the property tax levied from 1.7719 to ________. 

If you have any questions or comments, please call me at (775)847-1133 or Email me at 
jmccain@storeycounty.org.

Best Regards, 

Jennifer McCain
Comptroller
Storey County, Nevada

mailto:jmccain@storeycounty.org


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Storey County's Plan of Corrective Action
in response to the Department of Taxation’s review of Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit
report and identified violations pursuant to NRS 354.6245.

• Recommended motion: I Commissioner, _______, move to approve Storey County's
Plan of Corrective Action in response to the Nevada Department of Taxation’s review of
the Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit report and identified violations pursuant to NRS
354.6245.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Per NRS 354.6245(2) Storey County is required to submit a Plan of
Corrective Action to the Nevada Department of Taxation addressing violations identified
in the Department’s review of the annual audit. The FY24 audit identified two violations:
(1) three Special Revenues Funds exceeded budget appropriations, and (2) one Special
Revenue Fund had a negative ending fund balance.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        23



STOREY COUNTY COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
Storey County Courthouse 

10 South “B” Street
P.O. Box 432 Virginia City, Nevada  89440
Phone (775) 847-1133   Fax (775) 847-1151

February 24, 2025

Department of Taxation
Local Government Finance
Attn: Lynn Lukacs
3850 Arrowhead Drive
Carson City, Nevada 89706

Pursuant to NRS 354.6245, we acknowledge receipt of your letter dated     regarding the review 
of the FY24 annual audit report. We appreciate Taxation’s thorough review and the opportunity 
to address the identified violations. 

Storey County acknowledges that the listed Special Revenue Funds exceeded budget 
appropriations, and that one Special Revenue Fund ended the year with an negative ending fund 
balance.  

We plan to implement the following Plan of Corrective Action to prevent future occurrences. 
 Enhance Budget Monitoring: Quarterly budget reviews will be conducted to ensure

expenditure remains within appropriations
 Internal Controls Strengthening: End of year fund reviews will be more detailed

including possible payments that occur after the augmentation process is finalized.
 Staff training: Finance personnel will receive additional training on budget compliance

and financial reporting requirements.
 Review Implement Additional Review Procedures: Future transfer will undergo an

additional level of review to prevent similar errors.

If you have any questions or comments, please call me at (775)847-1133 or Email me at 
jmccain@storeycounty.org.

Best Regards, 

Jennifer McCain
Comptroller
Storey County, Nevada

mailto:jmccain@storeycounty.org


 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 
 

MAIN OFFICE 

3850 Arrowhead Drive 

Carson City, Nevada 89706 
 

 
JOE LOMBARDO 

Governor 

GEORGE KELESIS 

Chair, Nevada Tax Commission 

SHELLIE HUGHES 
Executive Director 

 

 

Page 1 of 1                                                      ADM-C004 
V2025.1 

January 29, 2025 
 
Jennifer McCain, Comptroller 
Storey County 
PO Box 432 
Virginia City, NV  89440  
 
Re: Annual Audit Report – Fiscal Year 2024 
 
Dear Ms. McCain: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 354.6245, the Department of Taxation is charged with the review of all annual audits 
to determine their compliance with statutes and/or regulations.  The Department must also identify all 
violations of statute and/or regulations reported therein. 
 
On January 6, 2025, the Department received the annual audit report Fiscal Year 2024. In our review of 
your audit, we identified violations of NRS 354.626 that were noted by your auditor on page 41 (Section 
II. B. of the Notes) of the audit report. The following Special Revenue funds exceeded budget 
appropriations by the actual expenditure/expenses in the amount listed below: 
 

• Drug Court   $40.00 

• Equipment Acquisition $19,619    

• Federal/State Grant  $53,053  
 
Also, we noted a Financial Statement finding consisting of a negative ending fund balance for the 
Emergency Mitigation Special Revenue Fund. This finding was not stated in the audit report. Per the 
entity’s 1/29/25 email, an error was made in the transfers for this fund which caused this discrepancy. 
 
Per NRS 354.6245, within 60 days after delivery of the annual audit to the local government, the 
governing body shall advise the Department of Taxation on what action(s) have been taken to prevent 
recurrence of violation(s) of law or regulation and to correct each continuing violation(s).  Also, each 
governing body (per NAC 354.721) shall submit with its proposed plan of correction a statement of the 
date on which it reviewed and approved the plan for submission to the Department. 
 
If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 775-684-2027 or e-mail at 
llukacs@tax.state.nv.us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Lynn Lukacs, Budget Analyst 
Local Government Finance 
Department of Taxation 
 

mailto:llukacs@tax.state.nv.us


Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to increase previously approved funding from
the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were outlined in the
district CIP, to an estimated amount of $340,000, an increase of $40,000.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve an increase in available
funds from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer at the
estimated amount of $340,000, an increase of $40,000.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: To support SCFPD’s operational needs, the FY 2025/2026 CIP includes
the proposed acquisition of a tractor and trailer to modernize and support the expansion
of the Wildland Division fleet. This acquisition was previously approved to utilize
available Capital Projects Funds in FY 2024/2025 for the unbudgeted purchase of these
items, not to exceed $300,000. After analyzing actual quotations and total costs through
numerous vendors, it has been determined that purchasing “factory new” equipment is
more beneficial than “like-new” used equipment. The purchase of “factory new”
equipment represents an increase of approximately $40,000 from the original $300,000
approved. This increase cost includes manufacture service and warranty that would not
be included with “like-new” used equipment.

•
• Additionally, the “factory new” equipment that is specified would significantly enhance

the quality, capabilities, and durability of the purchased products. Investing in high-
quality products with long service lives is in the best interest of SCFPD, as it ensures
reliability, reduces maintenance costs, and minimizes the need for frequent replacements.
This funding increase would ensure that the acquired equipment was of the highest
quality and standard, ultimately leading to cost savings over time. While the initial cost
may be higher, the long-term financial and operational benefits outweigh the expenses
associated with lower quality alternatives. Therefore, prioritizing quality in purchasing
decisions is a strategic approach that supports sustainability, efficiency, and long-term
profitability. This is in alignment with the goals outlined in the District CIP

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

        25



• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to send $176,929.54 of outstanding unpaid
ambulance bills to collections & write off the amount of $2,101.98.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve to send $176,929.54 of
outstanding unpaid ambulance bills to collections & write off the amount of $2101.98.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: Our third-party specialized ambulance billing company has made every
effort to collect outstanding unpaid debts, totaling $176,929.54, that have been
unresolved for a minimum of one year. Despite repeated efforts to contact and work with
the debtors, we have not received payment or a reasonable response.

• After thorough consideration and review of the collection efforts, further internal
attempts to collect these debts have been unsuccessful. As a result, I recommend that we
take the necessary steps to refer these accounts to a collections agency to ensure recovery
of these funds and to minimize further financial impact on the Fire District.

• Summary of Accounts:
• • Total Outstanding Debt: 176,929.54
• • Number of Debtors: 146
•
• By engaging a professional collections agency, we would benefit from their expertise in 

managing these accounts and ensuring that we adhere to legal and ethical standards 
throughout the process. We will also be able to maintain our focus on operations while 
recovering these funds.

•
• We are writing off the balance of $2,101.98 for individuals enrolled in the ambulance 

subscription, patients evaluated without treatment or transport, and individuals who were 
deceased at the scene. 

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

        26



• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Unpaid Bad Debt
Date Srvc Charge Paid Balance

01/05/24 $1,788.08 ($272.57) $309.53
01/06/24 $2,169.45 $0.00 $2,169.45
01/08/24 $2,026.43 ($620.02) $1,406.41
01/12/24 $2,014.60 $0.00 $2,014.60
01/20/24 $2,026.43 ($538.91) $1,487.52
01/20/24 $1,814.25 $0.00 $1,814.25
01/17/23 $1,898.34 $0.00 $1,898.34
01/22/24 $1,505.79 ($239.79) $301.17
01/21/23 $2,064.77 $0.00 $2,064.77
01/30/24 $1,650.98 $0.00 $1,650.98
01/31/24 $2,055.36 ($575.15) $146.72
02/01/24 $2,003.02 ($556.92) $142.08
02/03/24 $2,140.52 ($628.06) $1,512.46
02/07/24 $2,297.54 ($676.34) $1,621.20
02/08/24 $1,933.92 $0.00 $1,933.92
02/12/24 $2,052.60 $0.00 $2,052.60
02/05/23 $2,297.54 ($935.71) $1,361.83
02/14/24 $2,297.54 $0.00 $2,297.54
02/15/24 $1,986.26 ($1,191.76) $794.50
02/17/24 $1,898.34 $0.00 $1,898.34
02/23/24 $2,107.70 $0.00 $2,107.70

02/23/24 $2,102.12 $0.00 $2,102.12
02/28/24 $1,898.34 ($688.57) $175.65
02/16/23 $2,029.19 ($550.97) $140.55
03/02/24 $2,117.11 ($724.67) $1,392.44
03/04/24 $1,898.34 ($744.21) $120.01
03/05/24 $1,788.08 ($601.27) $153.39
03/05/24 $2,107.71 ($585.66) $149.41
03/10/24 $2,052.60 ($547.85) $150.00
03/11/24 $2,140.52 ($558.28) $1,582.24
03/12/24 $2,245.20 ($233.08) $2,012.12

03/13/24 $1,712.39 $0.00 $1,712.39
03/15/24 $2,023.61 ($534.50) $1,489.11
03/17/24 $2,154.46 ($558.86) $142.56
03/05/23 $2,169.45 ($378.93) $1,790.52
03/07/23 $2,122.04 ($387.10) $1,734.94
03/25/24 $1,735.74 ($446.02) $113.77
03/25/24 $1,735.74 ($446.02) $113.77
03/25/24 $2,145.45 ($1,422.00) $723.45
03/18/23 $2,095.87 $0.00 $2,095.87
03/30/24 $1,819.83 ($511.37) $130.45
03/22/23 $2,195.62 ($434.13) $1,761.49
03/23/23 $2,012.43 ($114.24) $1,898.19
04/05/24 $1,715.15 ($479.83) $122.41
04/08/24 $2,029.19 ($574.67) $1,454.52
04/08/24 $2,003.02 ($498.18) $1,504.84



04/11/24 $1,479.62 ($810.71) $668.91
04/13/24 $1,976.86 $0.00 $1,976.86
04/15/24 $240.24 $0.00 $240.24
04/19/24 $1,872.17 $0.00 $1,872.17
04/23/24 $1,840.42 ($474.05) $120.93
04/15/23 $1,631.06 ($105.00) $1,526.06
04/16/23 $2,169.45 $0.00 $2,169.45
04/16/23 $2,056.64 ($905.09) $230.88
05/02/24 $1,840.42 $0.00 $1,840.42

05/02/24 $2,107.70 ($601.49) $1,506.21
05/03/24 $1,788.08 ($460.73) $117.53
04/29/23 $1,892.76 $0.00 $1,892.76
05/08/22 $983.77 $0.00 $983.77
05/03/23 $2,166.69 $0.00 $2,166.69
05/11/24 $1,846.00 ($1,163.02) $682.98

05/15/24 $2,293.06 $0.00 $2,293.06
05/10/23 $2,297.55 ($842.17) $1,455.38
05/23/24 $2,023.61 $0.00 $2,023.61
06/10/23 $2,038.60 ($612.10) $1,426.50
06/11/23 $1,986.27 $0.00 $1,986.27
06/16/23 $1,945.11 ($1,696.65) $248.46
06/14/22 $1,592.14 ($789.18) $44.00
06/22/23 $2,107.70 ($434.13) $1,673.57
06/22/23 $1,767.49 $0.00 $1,767.49
06/29/23 $2,166.69 $0.00 $2,166.69
07/02/23 $1,741.32 $0.00 $1,741.32
07/03/23 $2,245.20 ($1,747.05) $498.15
07/08/23 $1,866.59 $0.00 $1,866.59
07/09/23 $1,774.14 $0.00 $1,774.14
07/13/23 $1,898.34 ($672.79) $173.66
07/15/23 $2,062.01 ($1,872.17) $189.84
07/18/23 $1,814.25 ($594.49) $151.65
07/27/23 $2,003.02 ($701.63) $178.99
07/29/23 $2,029.20 ($706.47) $180.22
08/02/23 $2,380.98 ($574.70) $1,806.28
07/27/22 $1,567.54 $0.00 $1,567.54
08/04/23 $1,610.47 ($438.30) $111.80
08/09/23 $1,918.93 $0.00 $1,918.93
08/09/23 $1,918.93 ($958.98) $959.95
08/15/23 $2,107.70 $0.00 $2,107.70
08/22/23 $2,052.60 $0.00 $2,052.60
08/25/23 $1,907.75 ($708.83) $1,198.92
01/22/24 $1,866.59 ($614.48) $1,252.11
08/30/23 $2,038.60 ($365.98) $1,672.62
09/14/23 $2,223.96 ($612.10) $1,611.86
09/19/23 $2,029.19 $0.00 $2,029.19
09/20/23 $2,140.52 ($680.11) $1,460.41

10/03/23 $2,107.70 ($467.96) $1,639.74



10/05/23 $1,986.26 $0.00 $1,986.26
10/07/23 $2,029.20 ($373.10) $321.17
10/07/23 $1,898.34 ($584.46) $265.00
10/19/23 $1,898.34 ($355.44) $300.00
10/03/22 $2,245.20 ($2,143.28) $101.92
10/22/23 $2,090.94 ($1,602.42) $488.52
10/24/23 $2,049.78 ($593.93) $1,455.85
10/27/23 $2,349.88 ($2,049.90) $299.98
10/29/23 $2,140.52 $0.00 $2,140.52
10/30/23 $2,245.20 $0.00 $2,245.20
11/04/23 $2,143.28 ($2,055.36) $87.92
11/04/23 $2,195.62 ($1,985.92) $209.70
11/06/23 $2,140.52 ($387.10) $1,753.42
11/08/23 $2,585.94 ($922.13) $1,663.81
11/08/23 $1,997.44 $0.00 $1,997.44
11/08/23 $2,219.03 ($659.61) $1,559.42
11/14/23 $2,023.61 ($651.11) $1,372.50
11/15/23 $2,195.62 ($842.17) $1,353.45
11/16/23 $2,326.48 $0.00 $2,326.48
11/17/23 $2,400.59 ($1,249.89) $1,150.70
11/18/23 $2,023.61 $0.00 $2,023.61
11/21/23 $2,038.60 ($1,950.68) $87.92
11/27/23 $2,271.37 ($723.66) $1,547.71
11/28/23 $2,140.52 $0.00 $2,140.52
11/28/23 $1,866.59 $0.00 $1,866.59
11/29/23 $2,614.35 $0.00 $2,614.35
11/29/23 $2,614.35 $0.00 $2,614.35
11/30/23 $2,114.35 $0.00 $2,114.35
11/30/23 $2,169.45 ($651.30) $1,518.15
12/02/23 $2,140.52 ($612.10) $1,528.42

12/02/23 $2,484.02 ($1,238.69) $1,245.33
12/02/23 $1,395.53 ($340.45) $86.84
12/05/23 $1,741.32 ($279.72) $325.00
12/06/23 $1,986.26 $0.00 $1,986.26
12/06/23 $2,081.53 ($1,285.56) $143.33
11/19/22 $2,276.31 ($1,400.00) $686.48
12/10/23 $2,140.52 ($1,950.68) $189.84
12/10/23 $2,195.62 ($732.37) $1,463.25
12/11/23 $2,029.19 ($398.12) $300.00
12/13/23 $1,505.79 $0.00 $1,505.79
12/13/23 $1,803.08 ($281.00) $315.00
12/14/23 $1,788.08 ($572.72) $1,215.36
12/15/23 $1,683.40 ($239.74) $287.15
12/17/23 $1,761.91 $0.00 $1,761.91
12/18/23 $1,657.23 ($300.00) $1,357.23
12/22/23 $1,897.69 $0.00 $1,897.69
12/29/23 $1,604.89 $0.00 $1,604.89
04/13/23 $2,140.52 ($544.09) $1,596.43
06/01/21 $1,304.27 $0.00 $234.77



01/19/22 $1,402.49 ($558.16) $139.54
12/23/23 $1,735.74 ($563.31) $150.00
12/24/23 $1,735.74 ($388.31) $325.00

Totals: $289,000.92 ($70332.48) $176929.54

  Write off's 
Date Srvc Charge Paid Balance

02/19/24 $1,945.11 $519.11 $300.00
03/31/24 $1,369.36 $390.02 $979.34
04/05/23 $240.24 $0.00 $240.24
11/17/23 $240.24 $0.00 $240.24
03/21/23 $342.16 $0.00 $342.16

Totals: $4,137.11 $909.13 $2101.98



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 25-765 of the Board of
Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, reaffirming the board’s request to the Nevada
Delegation to advance federal public lands legislation commonly referred to as the
Truckee Meadows Public Lands Management Act to support conservation, recreation,
and economic development in Washoe County.

• Recommended motion: I [county commissioner] motion to approve Resolution No. 25-
765 of the Board of Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, reaffirming this board’s
request to the Nevada Delegation to advance federal public lands legislation commonly
referred to as the Truckee Meadows Public Lands Management Act to support
conservation, recreation, and economic development in Washoe County.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: This resolution reaffirms Storey County’s support for efforts by
Washoe County and the City of Sparks to obtain certain federal lands in Washoe County
north of Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center that may facilitate future
development of a connector road extending USA Parkway from its current north terminus
to La Posada Drive in Spanish Springs. The proposal will facilitate reduced Interstate 80
traffic between Sparks and Fernley, provide for future growth in Washoe County for the
benefit of the entire northwestern Nevada region, and provide for recreation opportunities
and the preservation and protection of natural and cultural resources existing in the
subject federal lands area.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

         28



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



RESOLUTION NO. _25-765_ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, 
REQUESTING THE NEVADA DELEGATION TO ADVANCE FEDERAL PUBLIC LANDS 
LEGISLATION COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS THE TRUCKEE MEADOWS PUBLIC 
LANDS MANAGEMENT ACT TO SUPPORT CONSERVATION, RECREATION AND 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN WASHOE COUNTY. 

WHEREAS, the greater Truckee Meadows area has seen and continues to see substantial growth, which 
will require employment, housing, and recreational opportunities; and, 

WHEREAS, Washoe County has millions of acres of public lands (83%) that provide important 
recreational opportunities including hiking, camping, horseback riding, off-highway vehicle use, hunting, 
and fishing; and, 

WHEREAS, comprehensive public lands legislation will expand recreational opportunities in Washoe 
County by providing lands and funding for parks, trails and recreational facilities while preserving 
existing recreational uses; and, 

WHEREAS, these public lands provide numerous jobs and important economic contributions to 
communities throughout the region and support our outdoor recreation economy through tourism, as well 
as grazing, energy development, mining and other economic activities which are vital to our quality of life 
and make our region a desirable place to live, work and recreate; and,  

WHEREAS, comprehensive public lands legislation that is consistent with the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Plan and the Storey County Master Plan will support vital economic development now and into 
the future within a disposal boundary area which will make available public lands for sale and 
development to encourage infill development utilizing existing infrastructure to address housing demands 
and affordability, while preserving open space, protecting cultural resources, improving access to 
recreational areas and providing locally-directed resources to preserve and enhance existing 
infrastructure; and,  

WHEREAS, comprehensive public lands legislation will further conservation by appropriately 
designating wilderness areas to ensure that each area is qualified as appropriate, responsible and 
manageable pursuant to the 1964 Wilderness Act.   It will provide locally directed funding for 
conservation activities including habitat improvements for the protection and enhancement of wildlife 
resources and maintaining and improving access for outdoor recreation; and,   

WHEREAS, comprehensive public lands legislation addressing recreation, economic development, and 
conservation has provided important benefits to counties across Nevada, and can provide important 
benefits to Washoe County, Storey County, and the Region; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Desert Research Institute Study issued in December 2019, construction of 
the proposed La Posada Extension connecting I-80 with La Posada Drive will create a much more 
efficient road system providing an alternative commuting route which will result in a significant reduction 
in greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, as the Commissioners of Storey County support the 
Nevada Congressional Delegation and other diverse stakeholders in developing a well-balanced approach 
to comprehensive public land management legislation to support a growing community and promote 

Page 1 of 2 



Page 2 of 2 

sound policies to preserve the quality of life for which the Truckee Meadows and northern Nevada are 
known.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Storey County Commission supports the enactment of 
comprehensive public lands legislation to promote conservation, recreation and economic development to 
achieve important conservation goals, facilitate job creation and enhance the Region’s quality of life; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Storey County respectfully requests Senators Cortez-Masto and 
Rosen and Congressman Amodei to secure the introduction and enactment of well-balanced, 
comprehensive public lands legislation for Washoe County that considers the needs of current and future 
residents. 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this 4th day of March 2025. 

By: _______________________________ 

Jay Carmona, Commission Chairman 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Jim Hindle, Storey County Clerk 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding
upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the
following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, Senate bill(s)
regarding regional planning Storey, Washoe, Lyon, Carson, Douglas, and cities, Daly;
SB78 as potentially related to the Comstock Historic District Commission; AB77 tax
abatement; AB32 V&T Railway, AB128 public records request ombudsman including
open cases; AB242 sagebrush ecosystem and fire fuels reduction; SB232 Veterans Storey
County; SB247 rail transit; AB247 real-time sign language translation and disabilities;
AB61 Washoe County toll roads; all bills supported by the Nevada Association of
Counties (NACO) unless otherwise directed by the board, and AGA2240 Daylight
Savings Time.

• Recommended motion: I [county commissioner] motion to direct county staff and
lobbyists to represent Storey County on known BDRs, bills, and other potential
legislation affecting Storey County as follows: _________.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The board at each meeting directs county staff and lobbyists to take
certain positions on bills of significance to Storey County. Information on bills affecting
the county will be updated periodically throughout the 2025 legislative session at the
Storey County website at https://www.storeycounty.org/654/Legislative-Bills. Bill text
and related information is also available at the Nevada Legislature NELIS system at the
following.

•
• Senate Bill 69:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11869/Text
•
• Senate Bill 78:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11891/Text
•
• Other Bills in NELIS:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bills/List

        29



• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. American Document Destruction – Out of County / 480 Coney Island Dr. ~ Sparks,

NV
• B. Amfabsteel Inc. – Contractor / 100 Calle Industrial ~ Bernalillo, NM
• C. Baobab Press – Home Based / 96 A St. ~ Virginia City, NV
• D. Beyond Estate Sales LLC – Out of County / 1965 Woodhaven Ln ~ Sparks, NV
• E. California Erectors Inc. – Contractor / 4500 California Ct. ~ Benecia, CA
• F. Comstock Construction Services Inc. – Out of County / 115 Territory Rd. ~ Dayton,

NV
• G. Danny Couste Construction LLC – Contractor / 94 Paul Way ~ Carson City, NV
• H. Fire Suppression Technology’s Inc. – Contractor / 216 F St. ~ Waterford, CA
• I. KD Electric – Contractor / 681 Watson Way ~ Sparks, NV
• J. MJB Construction Co. – Contractor / 5795 Tappan Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• K. Reid Services LLC – Out of County / 425 College St. ~ Rockmart, GA
• L. Schindler Elevator Corporation – Contractor / 20 Whippany Rd. ~ Morristown, NJ
• M. Schumway’s Mobile Home Setters – Out of County / 5309 Torobie Cir. ~ Sun Valley,

NV
• N. XP Electric LLC – Contractor / 2266 Hayfield Ln. ~ Fernley, NV

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the

• Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

       30



• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office February 24, 2025 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the March 4, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. American Document Destruction – Out of County / 480 Coney Island Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

B. Amfabsteel Inc. – Contractor / 100 Calle Industrial ~ Bernalillo, NM

C. Baobab Press – Home Based / 96 A St. ~ Virginia City, NV

D. Beyond Estate Sales LLC – Out of County / 1965 Woodhaven Ln ~ Sparks, NV

E. California Erectors Inc. – Contractor / 4500 California Ct. ~ Benecia, CA

F. Comstock Construction Services Inc. – Out of County / 115 Territory Rd. ~ Dayton, NV

G. Danny Couste Construction LLC – Contractor / 94 Paul Way ~ Carson City, NV

H. Fire Suppression Technology’s Inc. – Contractor / 216 F St. ~ Waterford, CA

I. KD Electric – Contractor / 681 Watson Way ~ Sparks, NV

J. MJB Construction Co. – Contractor / 5795 Tappan Dr. ~ Reno, NV

K. Reid Services LLC – Out of County / 425 College St. ~ Rockmart, GA

L. Schindler Elevator Corporation – Contractor / 20 Whippany Rd. ~ Morristown, NJ

M. Schumway’s Mobile Home Setters – Out of County / 5309 Torobie Cir. ~ Sun Valley, NV

N. XP Electric LLC – Contractor / 2266 Hayfield Ln. ~ Fernley, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  


	BOCC Meeting - Agenda - 3-4-2025 (2-26-2025 10 14 04 AM).pdf
	BOCC Meeting Packet 3-4-2025
	BOCC Meeting - Meeting Packet - 3-4-2025 (2-26-2025 10 28 32 AM).pdf
	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the March 4, 2025, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2025, meeting.
	For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A.	ABSCO Fire Protection LLC – Contractor / 9025 Spanish Trail ~ Sparks, NV
B.	All Crane Service LLC – Out of County / 1000 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
C.	Crusoe Energy Systems, LLC – Out
	Approval of claims in the amount of $4,916,959.73.
	Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel Policy 1001 Disciplinary Actions and Appeals.
	Public Hearing on proposed Resolutions 25-757, 25-758, 25-759, 25-760, 25-761 and 25-762 as described: 
  RESOLUTION 25-757 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A MINOR COUNTY PUBLIC ROAD IDENTIFIED AS COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 910100, UNNAMED RD, PURSUANT TO NEVADA REVIS
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-757 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910100, commonly known as Unnamed, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,741’ (0.71 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-758 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910320, commonly known as Cemetery, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,172’ (0.6 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width:
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-759 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910325, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,042’ (0.58 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Widt
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-760 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 910470, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 4,744’ (1.09 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Widt
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-761 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 911345, commonly known as Unnamed Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 1,745’ (0.3 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Width
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution 25-762 proposing the identification of Storey County Road Number 920020, commonly known as Hillside Rd, Total Road Segment Length (in Horizontal Distance): 3,233’ (0.61 Miles) Overall Average Disturbed Wid
	Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout Storey County.
	Consideration and possible approval of Special Use Permit 2025-014.  The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment.  The outdoor venue is associated with the Silverland Inn and will include a variety of scheduled uses and
	Presentation and discussion featuring Storey County Public Relations & Social Media Metrics Update (August 2024 – January 2025).
	Consideration and possible approval directing the Comptroller to notify the Nevada Department of Taxation of the property tax rate the Storey County Board of Commissioners propose to levy for fiscal year 2025-2026.
	Consideration and possible approval of Storey County's Plan of Corrective Action in response to the Department of Taxation’s review of Fiscal Year 2024 annual audit report and identified violations pursuant to NRS 354.6245.
	Consideration and possible approval to increase previously approved funding from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were outlined in the district CIP, to an estimated amount of $340,000, an increase of $40,000.
	Consideration and possible approval to send $176,929.54 of outstanding unpaid ambulance bills to collections & write off the amount of $2,101.98.
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 25-765 of the Board of Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada, reaffirming the board’s request to the Nevada Delegation to advance federal public lands legislation commonly referred to as the Truckee M
	Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, Senate bill
	For Consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
A.	American Document Destruction – Out of County / 480 Coney Island Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
B.	Amfabsteel Inc. – Contractor / 100 Calle Industrial ~ Bernalillo, NM
C.	Baobab Press –

	Storey County FY24 audit - Violations




